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CITY OF

VICTORIA

AMENDED AGENDA
GOVERNANCE & PRIORITIES COMMITTEE

MEETING OF APRIL 24, 2014
CLOSED MEETING AT 8:45 A.M.

OPEN MEETING AT 9:00 A.M.
COUNCIL CHAMBERS
CITY HALL, 1 CENTENNIAL SQUARE

Page

CALL TO ORDER
CLOSED MEETING
MOTION TO CLOSE THE APRIL 24, 2014, GOVERNANCE & PRIORITIES
COMMITTEE MEETING TO THE PUBLIC (To consider the following items in a closed
meeting of Governance & Priorities Committee, the following motion is required: “That
Governance & Priorities Committee convene a closed meeting that excludes the public
under Section 12(6) of the Council Bylaw for the reason that the following agenda
items deal with matters specified in Sections 12(3) and/or (4) of the Council Bylaw.”)
Section 12 (3) (I) - discussions with municipal officers and employees respecting
municipal objectives, measures and progress reports for the purpose of preparing an
annual report under section 98 of the Community Charter

Audit Findings - 2013 Financial Statements (Verbal)

Item #15. Minutes from the Closed Meeting held March 27, 2014
OPEN MEETING
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA
CONSENT AGENDA
ADOPTION OF MINUTES

Minutes from the Meeting held April 10, 2014

Late Item: Addition of Minutes
MEMO

Status Update - Quarterly Progress Report and Operational Plan 5

--J. Johnson, City Manager
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DECISION REQUEST

2013 Financial Statements 7-102
--S. Thompson, Acting Director of Finance

2014 First Quarter Budget Status Report 103 - 108
--S. Thompson, Acting Director of Finance

Beacon Hill Park Transportation Management Plan - Revised Budget 109 - 180
--K. Friars, Director of Parks, Recreation & Culture

Active Transportation Capital Projects - 2014 Work Plan 181 - 186
--D. Kalynchuk, Director of Engineering & Public Works

Proposed Statutory Right-of-Way - East Side Sitkum Road 187 - 188
--D. Kalynchuk, Director of Engineering & Public Works

Project Update for Fire Station #1 and Point Ellice Bridge 189 - 229
--D. Kalynchuk, Director of Engineering & Public Works

Civic Facilities Naming Rights Guidelines 231 - 245
--J. Jenkyns, General Manager of the VCC

Animal Control Bylaw Amendments 247 - 257
--R. Woodland, Director of Legislative & Regulatory Services

Splash Poolside Lounge Liquor Licence Application 259 - 269
1961 Douglas Street
--R. Woodland, Director of Legislative & Regulatory Services

Grant of Easement - 111 Barkley Terrace 271 - 274
--R. Woodland, Director of Legislative & Regulatory Services

Irdemnification-of-Employeesfor Criminal-Befence Costs Deferred 275 - 279
--T. Zworski, City Solicitor

NEW BUSINESS
---MOTION
---COUNCILLOR INQUIRY
---COUNCILLOR SHARING

RECESS
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15.

16.

MOTION TO CLOSE THE APRIL 24, 2014, GOVERNANCE & PRIORITIES
COMMITTEE MEETING TO THE PUBLIC (To consider the following items in a closed
meeting of Governance & Priorities Committee, the following motion is required: “That
Governance & Priorities Committee convene a closed meeting that excludes the public
under Section 12(6) of the Council Bylaw for the reason that the following agenda
items deal with matters specified in Sections 12(3) and/or (4) of the Council Bylaw.”)
Section 12 (3) (c) — Labour relations or employee relations

CLOSED MEETING

CONSENT AGENDA - CLOSED MEETING

ADOPTION OF THE CLOSED MINUTES

Moved to the beginning of the meeting

Minutes from the Closed Meeting held March 27, 2014

DECISION REQUEST
Legal—tndemnification—Deferred

--Council & Committee Minutes

CONSIDERATION TO RISE & REPORT

ADJOURNMENT
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Governance and Priorities Committee - 24 Apr 2014

CITY OF

VICTORIA

Governance and Priorities Committee Report

Date: April 17, 2014 From: Jason Johnson, City Manager
Subject: Status Update — Quarterly Progress Report and Operational Plan

Purpose

The purpose of this report is to provide Council with an update on the status of the Quarterly
Progress Report for the first quarter of 2014.

Update on Report Status

The Quarterly Progress Report on Strategic Initiatives is typically presented to the Governance
and Priorities Committee at the second meeting following the end of the quarter. The report was
originally scheduled on the agenda for the April 24, 2014 Governance and Priorities Committee
meeting.

As part of my on-going organizational assessment, | have identified a need for an additional report
to capture other departmental initiatives that are not included in the Quarterly Progress Report. |
feel this Operational Plan is a key management tool for me and will also provide Council with
information of interest. Directors are currently working on preparing this new report, which | plan
to present along with the Quarterly Progress Report at the May 8th Governance and Priorities
Committee meeting.

Respectfully submitted,

Jasen Johnson

City Manager
Governance and Priorities Committee Report April 17, 2014
Status Update — Quarterly Progress Report and Operational Plan Page 1 of 1
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Governance and Priorities Committee - 24 Apr 2014

CITY OF

VICTORIA

Governance and Priorities Committee Report

Date: April 15, 2014 From: Laurel Westinghouse, Manager of Accounting

Subject: 2013 Financial Statements

Executive Summary

Under section 167 of the Community Charter, a municipality’s financial statements must be prepared
by its Financial Officer and presented to Council for its acceptance. The 2013 financial statements
are the responsibility of management and have been prepared in accordance with “generally
accepted accounting principles” for local governments established by the Public Sector Accounting
Board.

Under section 171 of the Community Charter, the City’'s Municipal Auditor (KPMG) must report to
Council on the annual financial statements. The report must be in accordance with the form and the
reporting standards recommended by the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants.

Today’s presentation will provide an overview of the City’s 2013 Financial Statements.

Following this presentation, KPMG will present their audit findings report. Once accepted by Council,

KPMG will issue an Auditor’'s Report expressing that in their opinion the financial statements present
fairly, in all material aspects, the financial position of the City as at December 31, 2013.

Recommendation:

That Council accept the 2013 Financial Statements.

Respectfully submitted

y
/ -":’j ‘_ //f // . / / _'f/
7724 04%0‘7% totes” V.74 % a7
Laurel Westinghouse usanne Thompson
Manager of Accounting Acting Director of Finance
Report accepted and recommended by the City Manager: //U A
Date: VAO' \ (o704

2013 Financial Statements--S. Thompson, Acting Director of F... Page 7 of 279



Governance and Priorities Committee - 24 Apr 2014

Purpose

To provide Council with an overview of the City’s 2013 audited Financial Statements and request
Council's acceptance as required by Section 167 of the Community Charter.

Background

Section 167 of the Community Charter requires that annual audited financial statements be
prepared and presented to Council for acceptance. The City's audited consolidated financial
statements for 2013 have been prepared by management in accordance with the generally
accepted accounting principles for local governments, as prescribed by the Public Sector
Accounting Board (PSAB) of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants.

Under PSAB reporting requirements, the following statements are presented for Council's review:
(page references to Appendix C)

1. Statement of Financial Position (pg. 3) — provides a summary of the City's economic
resources available to meet its obligations and provide services. By continuing to grow its
net financial asset position, the City strengthens its capacity to meet financial obligations.

2. Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus (pg. 4) — identifies the current year
contribution to the Accumulated Surplus balance from revenue and expenses

3. Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets (pg. 5) — supplementary detail of the
changes in assets and liabilities that explain the change to the Net Financial Assets
balance on the Statement of Financial Position

4. Statement of Cash Flows (pg. 6)- supplementary detail to support the change to Cash
and Cash Equivalents balance on the Statement of Financial Position

5. Notes to the Financial Statements (pgs. 7 — 33) - additional detail to disclose relevant
reporting information and support significant balances in the Financial Statements.

Issues & Analysis

Accumulated Surplus

The Accumulated Surplus balance at December 31, 2013, as reported on the Statement of
Financial Position, is $436 million. This is the accumulation of the City's increases in equity in
capital assets and reserve balances since its inception. The balance is an indication of how much
the City's assets exceed its liabilities and represents the total ‘economic resources’ available to
the City.

Of these ‘economic resources’ available, equity in capital assets makes up the most significant
portion of the accumulated surplus balance, followed by reserve balances (Figure 1). The current
year General Fund Surplus of $3.47 million makes up a small portion of the Accumulated Surplus
balance.

This means that the majority of the $436 million consists of the City's tangible capital assets, such
as roads, underground infrastructure, land, buildings, and equipment, along with funds set aside
in reserves for future spending. ‘

Governance and Priorities Committee Report April 15, 2014
2013 Financial Statements Page 2 of 7
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Governance and Priorities Committee - 24 Apr 2014

Figure 1. Accumulated Surplus at December 31, 2013
$436,208,269
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Annual Surplus

The annual surplus represents the ‘economic resources’ gained by the City during the year and is
reported on the Statement of Operations. The City’s annual surplus for 2013 is $35.6 million.
Most of this surplus is comprised of increased equity in capital assets and growth in reserve
balances (Figure 2). Of the total annual surplus balance, $3,474,559 is the General Fund surplus
which is available for future spending.

Council makes a decision annually on the use of the current year General Fund surplus which is
incorporated into the following year's budget.

Figure 2. 2013 Annual Surplus - $35,614,534
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Reserves

All of the City reserve funds were established by bylaw under section 188 of the Community
Charter. Funding from these reserves can only be used for the specific purposes outlined in the
bylaw. In 2013 the City’s reserves grew by $13.9 million (Table 1).

Governance and Priorities Committee Report April 15, 2014
2013 Financial Statements _ Page 3 of 7
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Governance and Priorities Committee - 24 Apr 2014

Transfers from reserves, to fund capital projects and programs, were $8.6 million less than budget
due to the following circumstances: funding is only drawn down from reserves as capital projects
are completed; fewer projects than planned were completed by December 31; and some projects
experienced schedule adjustments to begin at a later date.

SpeCIfIC to 2013, Capital projects that were delayed include:
Sewer Main Upgrade project — delayed pending completion of the Sewer Master Plan, which
is scheduled to be complete in 2015

= Douglas Street Retaining Wall — the site investigation and design was completed in 2013 and
the construction will take place in 2014

= Rock Bay Remediation — dependent on start date of BC Hydro and Transport Canada’s
environmental remediation project in Rock Bay

* Victoria Harbour Marine Protection — project planning in 2013 and design and construction in

2014
Table 1. Reserve Balances
Transfer Transfer

RESERVE BALANCES Dec 31,2012 To From Interest Dec 31, 2013
Financial Stability Reserves $ 3227324 $ 100000 $ (769150) $ 40341 $ 2,598,515
Equipment & Infrastructure Replacement Fund 53,037,267 11,086,320 (12,121,519) 662,965 52,665,033
Gas Tax 5,137,696 2,146,764 (911,683) 64,221 6,436,998
Economic development o i P Ly T B - i - - 9,067 734,445
Debt Reduction 13,335,722 7,752,593 - 166,697 21,255,012
Self Insurance - 3,687,282 - - 46,091 3,733,373
Working Capital Fund 3,789,711 - - 4737 3,837,082
Tax Sale Lands Fund : 10,326,723 50,000 (842,165) 129,084 9,663,642
Parks and Greenways Acquisition Fund 2,241,446 - - 28,018 2,269,464
Local Amenities 100,784 - - 1,260 102,044
Affordable Housing 2,051,341 250,000 (430,000) 25,643 1,896,984
Climate Action : 253,415 124,367 - 3,168 380,950
Water Utility 1,844,385 3,033,533 - 23,055 4,900,973
Sewer Utility 13,434,671 2,801,083 - 167,933 16,403,687
Tree conservation 306,403 29,640 - 3,830 339,873
Art in public places - 234,205 135,000 (70,569) 2,928 301,564
Downtown Core Area Public Realm Improvements - 57,373 - - 57,373
Heritage Building Seismic Upgrades - ; 19,124 - - 19,124
TOTAL RESERVES $113,733,753 = $27,585,798  $(15,145,086) $1,421,672  § 127,596,137

DCCs

Development Cost Charges (DCC) are contributions from developers collected under bylaw to
provide funds to assist the City to pay the capital costs of providing, constructing, altering or
expanding transportation, water, drainage, and sewage facilities, and of providing and improving
parkland.

DCC balances (Table 2) increased in 2013 by $83,420 in interest revenue allocated and $858,176
in charges, compared to $2.6 million in charges collected in 2012. There was no capital activity
funded from the DCC balances in 2013, compared to $277,382 transferred to capital in 2012.

Governance and Priorities Committee Report April 15, 2014
2013 Financial Statements Page 4 of 7
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Governance and Priorities Committee - 24 Apr 2014

Table 2. DCC Balances

Transfer Transfer

DEVELOPMENT COST CHARGES Dec 31,2012 To From Interest Dec 31,2013
Water and Environment $ 890,418 $ - $ - $ 11130 $ 901,548
Streets _ 19,508 - - 244 19,752
Transportation 2,598,109 329,043 - 32,476 2,959,628
Water 248,914 37,057 : - 3 289,082
Drainage 152,005 20,898 - 1,900 174,802
Sewage R 851,617 165,222 - 10,645 1,027,484
Parkland Acquisition 1,429,198 215,269 : - 17,865 1,662,332
Parkland Development 483,939 90,688 - 6,049 580,675
TOTAL DEVELOPMENT COST CHARGES $ 6,673,707 $ 858176 % = $ 83420 $ 7,615,303

Capital Assets :
The City's inventory of capital assets (Table 3) increased by $25.4 million with the most significant
increases resulting from:

= $8.9 million of road infrastructure — construction of Johnson Street Bridge

= $8 million of water/sewer/storm drain infrastructure built

»  $5.5 million of vehicle and equipment purchases

= $1.8 million of building infrastructure built — City Hall customer service/access

improvement

Table 3. Capital Assets

CAPITAL ASSETS (Historical Costs) 2013 2012
Land $136,693,575 $135,784,270
Buildings i 90,770,544 85,145,510
Furniture, Equip, Tech & Vehicles 58,088,624 50,884,754
Roads, Bridges and Highways 86,295,730 83,685,450
Water Infrastructure 53,077,355 51,259,470
Sewer Infrastructure 16,440,681 16,108,253
Drainage Infrastructure 12,436,445 © 12,078,440
Assets under Construction 34,846,843 28,301,636
Total Capital Assets $488,649,797 $463,247,783
Accumulated Amortization -130,907,113 -122,063,816
TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS (Net Book Value) $357,742,684 $341,183,967
Debt

The City's outstanding debt (Table 4) decreased in the year by $3.1 million. No new debt was
issued in 2013 and the only debt authorized but not issued is $39 million for the Johnson Street
Bridge. This debt is planned to be issued as the bridge is constructed, with $23 million planned

for 2014.
Governance and Priorities Committee Report April 15, 2014
2013 Financial Statements Page 5 of 7
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Table 4. Debt
‘DEBT ISSUES (in millions) EXPIRY DATE _ 2013
Issue 79, 80, 81 — Multipurpose Facility (Arena) ! 2033/34 24.42
Issue 85 — City Hall Seismic Upgrades : 2019 1.32
Issue 95 — Upgrade Fire Halls : 2020 i 0.68
Issue 102 — City Hall Upgrades & Burnside Gorge Community Centre 2022 3.01
Issue 105 — Crystal Gardens 2024 269
Issue 103/105/110 — Parkades Upgrades 2023 /2023 / 2025 707
Issue 115 — Johnson Street Bridge 2023 9.5
TOTAL DEBT $48.7 million
Investments

The City’s investment portfolio (Table 5) returned $2.3 million in 2013, an increase of $95,000 as
compared to 2012. The actual investment portfolio rate of return was 1.74%:

=  59% greater than the return of the MFA money market fund

= 40% greater than the City’s average bank account interest rate

The investment portfolio is governed by the City's Investment Policy which is designed to invest
public funds in a prudent manner, to yield the highest returns within the limits prescribed by
Community Charter s.183, Investment of Municipal Funds.

The majority of investment revenue is allocated to reserves, as per the City's Reserve Fund

Policy.

Table 5. Investments

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO 2013 2012
Investment Returns $2,313,072 $2,218,046
Actual Rate of Return 1.74% 1.78% |
MFA Money Market Return : 1.09%| 1.06%
Average Bank Interest Rate o 1.25% - 1.25%

Revenues and expenses

The Financial Statements are presented in accordance with PSAB reporting standards to ensure
comparability between government organizations across Canada. The budget information in the
Statement of Operations was developed for the purpose of the Financial Plan, which is
customized to the operations of individual government organizations. The format of the financial

Governance and Priorities Committee Report April 15, 2014
2013 Financial Statements Page 6 of 7

2013 Financial Statements--S. Thompson, Acting Director of F... Page 12 of 279



Governance and Priorities Committee - 24 Apr 2014
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City of Victoria - Operating Budget Expenses
For the Twelve Months Ending December 31, 2013

= : : = Actoal = 2013 Budget 1 | .
- Description : 31-Dec-13 Budget Remaining % Comments
Corporate
Includes funds for Fire collective agreement increases 2010
Contingencies - 2,211,438 2,211,438 0% - 2013
Fees and Interest 156,687 170,000 13,313 92%
Grants 431,570 391,796 (39,774) 110% Offselting transfer from Housing Reserve
Insurance 471,897 531,301 59,404 89% Insurance allocalions to departments higher than budget
Miscellaneous 859,017 1,287,998 428,981 67% Tax appeals to BC Assessment lower than expecled
Vehicle Depreciation Allocation (1,192,000) (1,000,000) 192,000 119% Transfer equals actual recoveries
Economic Development Implementation 200,599 250,000 49,401 80% Function started June 2013
Offsetting revenue (transfers to VCC & Tourism Victoria for
Hotel Tax 2,063,150 1,800,000 (263,150) 115% Destination Marketing)
Gas tax revenue $2.15M; higher than expected interest
revenue $937K; vehicle depreciation recovery higher than
expecled, recreation ticket surcharge; DCAP Public Realm
Transfers to Own Funds 14,794,244 10,949,346 (3,844,898) 135% and Downtown Heritage Seismic density bonus revenues
Greater Victoria Public Library 4,310,017 4,275,183 (34.834) 101% Additonal building maintenance costs
Debt Principal, Interest and Reserve Transfer 7,827,583 7,827,583 - 100%
Transfer to Capital Budget 10,794,852 10,794,852 - 100%
Council 550,533 581,648 31,115 95% Committee meeting costs less than expected
Offices of the Mayor and City Manager 918,059 1,003,908 85,849 91% Elimination of one position
Finance 5,897,155 6,148,983 251,828 96% Vacancies, reduced telephone cosls
Human Resources 1,663,173 1,576,392 (86,781) 106% Recruitment and arbitration costs higher than budget
Sustainability Department 731,564 880,783 149,219 83% Department eliminated, grant carried forward to 2014
Vacancies, webcasting start later in the year, lower than
expected leasing costs and repair and maintenance costs
Legislative and Regulatory Service 3,301,792 3,470,849 169,057 95% for City properties
Office of the City Solicitor 664,800 718,017 53,217 93% Vacancies
Corporate Communications 670,591 723,007 52,416 93% Vacancies
Sustainable Planning and Community Development 4,776,003 5,037,736 261,733 95% Vacancies
Engineering and Public Works
Public Works 12,244,820 12,700,976 456,156 96% Vacancies
Support Services 987,012 1,027,244 40,232 96% Vacancies
Transportation 2,500,091 2,518,522 18,431 99%
Third Party Billings 1,090,873 425,000 (665,973} 257% Offsetling revenues
Underground Utilities and Facilities 3,912,133 3,904,359 (7,774) 100%
Higher than budgeted parking fine write-offs, partially offset
Parking Services 7,735,850 7,661,000 (74,850) 101% by additional revenues
Solid Waste & Recycling 2,728,823 2,707,785 (21,038) 101% Offsetting revenues
Subtotal Engineering & Public Works 31,199,702 30,944,886 {254,816) 101%
Parks, Recreation and Culture -
Parks, Rec & Culture Adminstration 221,148 263,636 42,488 84% Vacancies
Recreation & Cullure 2,423,299 2,714,466 291,167 89% Vacancies, reduced grant program uptake
Parks 8,632,730 9,002,298 369,568 96% Vacancies
School District delayed maintenance work at James Bay
Community Centres 739,911 756,707 16,796 98% Community School
Crystal Pool 2,093,162 2,190,448 97,286 96% Vacancies
Royal Athletic Park 826,140 617,965 (208,175) 134% New baseball team, partially offsetting revenue
Subtotal Parks, Recreation and Culture 14,936,389 15,545,520 609,131 96%

Fire Department
Accrual for Fire salary increases 2010-2013; budget in
Fire 14,108,248 12,869,445 (1,238,803) 110% contingencies
Victoria Emergency Management Agency 401,252 438,850 37,598 91%
Net surplus transferred to employee benefit obligation
reserve as per the financial agreement between Esquimall,
Police Department 46,654,400 46,778,120 123,720 100% Victoria and the Police Board

Total City Operations 167,191,277 166,207,641 (983,6386) 101%

Self Financed Programs

Conference Centre 8,851,290 8,717,259 (134,031} 102% Event flow-through cost paid by clients higher than expected
Reserve transfer higher due to higher than expected
Water Ulility 18,236,252 17,410,408 (825,844) 105% revenue
Reserve transfer higher due to higher than expected
Sewer Ulility 8,210,317 7,603,503 (606,814) 108% revenue
Total Self Financed 35,297,859 33,731,170 (1,566,689) 106%
202,489,136 199,938,811 (2,550,325) 101%
Operating Revenue 205,963,695
Current year surplus 3,474,559
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MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accompanying financial statements of The Corporation of the City of Victoria (the "City") are the
responsibility of management and have been prepared in compliance with legislation, and in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards for local governments as recommended
by the Public Sector Accounting Board of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada. A
summary of the significant accounting policies are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. The
preparation of financial statements necessarily involves the use of estimates based on management’s
judgment, particularly when transactions affecting the current accounting period cannot be finalized
with certainty until future periods.

The City’'s management maintains a system of internal controls designed to provide reasonable
assurance that assets are safeguarded, transactions are properly authorized and recorded in
compliance with legislative and regulatory requirements, and reliable financial information is available
on a timely basis for preparation of the financial statements. These systems are monitored and
evaluated by management.

Mayor and Council meet with management and the external auditors to review the financial statements
and discuss any significant financial reporting or internal control matters prior to their approval of the
financial statements.

The financial statements have been audited by KPMG LLP, independent external auditors appointed
by the City. The accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report outlines their responsibilities, the scope
of their examination and their opinion on the City’s financial statements.

Chief Administrative Officer Director of Finance

DRAFT - April 10, 2014, 3:15 PM 1
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Mayor and Councillors of The Corporation of the City of Victoria

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The Corporation of the City of Victoria,
which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2013, the statements of
operations, change in net financial assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes,
comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
The Corporation of the City of Victoria as at December 31, 2013, and its results of operations, its
changes in net financial assets, and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Chartered Accountants
April 24, 2014

Victoria, Canada

2013 FinancidPRAEMApE-1S. 2 dnFpsoRMcting Director of F... Page20 of 279



Governance and Priorities Committee - 24 Apr 2014

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF VICTORIA

Statement of Financial Position

DRAFT
December 31, 2013, with comparative information for 2012
2013 2012
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (note 2) $ 77,029,860 $ 68,674,544
Accounts receivable:
Property taxes 3,689,048 4,049,099
Other (note 3) 23,990,209 20,668,188
Investments (note 4) 79,947,834 67,966,042
Other assets 820,177 837,019
185,477,128 162,194,892
Financial liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (note 5) 25,713,605 19,975,979
Deposits and prepayments 8,165,942 7,497,496
Deferred revenue (note 6) 11,374,879 11,254,243
Long-term debt (note 7) 48,684,183 51,793,520
Obligations under capital lease (note 8) 428,679 569,919
Employee future benefit obligations (note 9) 14,139,728 13,266,418
108,507,016 104,357,575
Net financial assets 76,970,112 57,837,317
Non-financial assets:
Tangible capital assets (note 10) 357,742,684 341,183,966
Inventory of supplies 861,738 811,715
Prepaid expenses and deposits 633,735 760,732
359,238,157 342,756,413
Accumulated surplus (note 11) $ 436,208,269 $ 400,593,730
Commitments (note 15)
Contingent liabilities (note 16)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
On behalf of the City:
Director of Finance
DRAFT - April 10, 2014, 3:15 PM 3
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF VICTORIA

Statement of Operations

DRAFT

Year ended December 31, 2013, with comparative information for 2012

Budget 2013 2012
(note 17)

Revenue:
Net taxes available for municipal
purposes (note 12)
Net grants in lieu of taxes available

$ 117,218,660

$ 117,527,959

$ 113,627,445

for municipal purposes 5,810,400 6,002,398 5,694,671
Sale of goods and services 37,365,635 39,213,870 37,762,019
Sale of water 17,247,408 18,014,368 15,734,163
Licences and permits 3,695,500 3,762,836 3,553,329
Fines 5,080,000 4,648,084 5,274,661
Rentals and leases 925,000 964,149 995,575
Other penalties and interest 2,480,000 3,140,578 3,284,492
Government transfers (note 13) 24,521,978 10,354,581 13,215,076
Actuarial adjustment on debt - 473,053 608,236
Miscellaneous 3,971,532 5,442,979 4,911,545
Total revenue 218,316,113 209,544,855 204,661,212

Expenses:
General government 36,989,370 36,887,351 39,122,389
Protective services 62,657,146 64,194,738 61,021,975
Transportation services 19,232,012 20,345,311 20,326,562
Environmental and public health services 6,381,874 6,573,576 6,079,537
Community planning 3,205,002 2,883,739 3,128,821
Parks recreation and community

development 23,995,203 24,916,529 25,346,991
Water utility 12,517,685 12,895,938 12,549,516
Sewer utility 2,499,759 5,233,134 3,347,289
Total expenses 167,478,051 173,930,316 170,923,080

Annual surplus 50,838,062 35,614,539 33,738,132
Accumulated surplus, beginning of year 400,593,730 400,593,730 366,855,598

Accumulated surplus, end of year

$ 451,431,792

$ 436,208,269

$ 400,593,730

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

DRAFT - April 10, 2014, 3:15 PM
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF VICTORIA

Statement of Change in Net Financial Assets

DRAFT

Year ended December 31, 2013, with comparative information for 2012

Budget 2013 2012
(note 17)
Annual surplus $ 50,838,062 $ 35614,539 $ 33,738,132
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (83,149,750) (28,522,210) (29,713,991)
Amortization of tangible capital assets - 9,584,265 8,666,776
Loss (gain) on disposal of tangible

capital assets - (172,514) (4,798)
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets - 2,551,741 70,005
(83,149,750) (16,558,718) (20,982,008)
Consumption of inventory of supplies - (50,023) (14,234)
Purchase of prepaid expenses and deposits - 126,997 (233,119)
- 76,974 (247,353)

Change in net financial assets (32,311,688) 19,132,795 12,508,771
Net financial assets, beginning of year 57,837,317 57,837,317 45,328,546
Net financial assets, end of year $ 25,525,629 $ 76,970,112 $ 57,837,317

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF VICTORIA

Statement of Cash Flows

DRAFT
Year ended December 31, 2013, with comparative information for 2012
2013 2012
Cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities:
Annual surplus $ 35,614,539 $ 33,738,132
Items not involving cash:
Amortization of tangible capital assets 9,584,265 8,666,776
Loss (gain) on disposal of tangible capital assets (172,514) (4,798)
Change in employee benefits and other liabilities 873,310 969,064
Actuarial adjustment on debt (473,053) (608,236)
Change in non-cash operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable - other (3,322,021) 50,223
Property taxes receivable 360,051 (231,294)
Other financial assets 16,842 108,358
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 5,737,626 2,559,222
Deposits and prepayments 668,446 1,414,990
Deferred revenue 120,636 748,006
Inventory of supplies (50,023) (14,234)
Prepaid expenses and deposits 126,997 (233,119)
49,085,101 47,163,090
Capital activities:
Cash used to acquire tangible capital assets (28,522,210) (29,713,991)
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets 2,551,741 70,005
(25,970,469) (29,643,986)

Investing activities:

Decrease (increase) in investments (11,981,792) 1,188,780
Financing activities:
Debt repaid (2,636,284) (4,742,141)
Capital lease repaid (141,240) (138,409)
(2,777,524) (4,880,550)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 8,355,316 13,827,334
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 68,674,544 54,847,210
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 77,029,860 $ 68,674,544
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
DRAFT - April 10, 2014, 3:15 PM 6
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF VICTORIA

Notes to Financial Statements

DRAFT
Year ended December 31, 2013

The Corporation of the City of Victoria (the "City") is incorporated and operates under the provisions of
the Local Government Act and the Community Charter of British Columbia.

The City provides municipal services such as police, fire, public works, engineering, planning, parks,
recreation, community development, conference facilities and other general government operations.

1. Significant accounting policies:

The financial statements of The Corporation of the City of Victoria (the “City”) are prepared by
management in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles for
governments as recommended by the Public Sector Accounting Board of the Chartered
Professional Accountants of Canada. Significant accounting policies adopted by the City are as
follows:

(a) Reporting entity:

The financial statements include a combination of all the assets, liabilities, accumulated
surplus, revenues and expenses of all of the City's activities and funds. Inter-departmental
balances and organizational transactions have been eliminated.

(i) Consolidated entities

The City does not control any significant external entities and accordingly no entities
have been consolidated in the financial statements.

(i) Funds held in trust

The financial statements exclude trust assets that are administered for the benefit of
external parties (note 14).

(b) Basis of accounting:

The City follows the accrual method of accounting for revenues and expenses. Revenues
are normally recognized in the year in which they are earned and measurable. Expenses are
recognized as they are incurred and measurable as a result of receipt of goods or services
and/or the creation of a legal obligation to pay.

(c) Government transfers:

Government transfers are recognized in the financial statements as revenues in the period
the transfers are authorized and any eligibility criteria have been met, except when and to
the extent that the transfer gives rise to an obligation that meets the definition of a liability for
the recipient government. Transfers received which meet the definition of a liability are
included in deferred revenue.

DRAFT - April 10, 2014, 3:15 PM 7
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF VICTORIA

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

DRAFT
Year ended December 31, 2013

1. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(d) Deferred revenue:
Certain user charges and fees are collected for which the related services have yet to be
performed. Revenue is recognized in the period when the related expenses are incurred or
the services are performed.

(e) Deposits and prepayments:
Receipts restricted by third parties are deferred and reported as deposits and are refundable
under certain circumstances. Deposits and prepayments are recognized as revenue when
qualifying expenditures are incurred.

(f) Property tax revenue:

Property tax revenue is recognized on the accrual basis using the approved bylaw rates and
the anticipated assessment related to the current year.

(g) Investmentincome:
Investment income is reported as revenue in the period earned. When required by the
funding government or related Act, investment income earned on deferred revenue is added
to the investment and included in deferred revenue.

(h) Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash equivalents include short-term highly liquid investments with a term to maturity of 90
days or less at acquisition. Cash equivalents also include investments in the Municipal
Finance Authority of British Columbia (“MFA”) Money Market Funds which are recorded at
cost plus earnings reinvested in the funds.

(i) Long-term debt:

Long-term debt is recorded net of related sinking fund balances and actuarial adjustments.

DRAFT - April 10, 2014, 3:15 PM 8
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF VICTORIA

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

DRAFT
Year ended December 31, 2013

1. Significant accounting policies (continued):
(i) Employee future benefits:

(i) The City and its employees make contributions to the Municipal Pension Plan. These
contributions are expensed as incurred.

Sick leave and other retirement benefits are also available to the City’s employees. The
costs of these benefits are actuarially determined based on service and best estimates
of retirement ages and expected future salary and wage increases. The obligations
under these benefit plans are accrued based on projected benefits as the employees
render services necessary to earn the future benefits.

(i) The costs of multi-employer defined contribution pension plan benefits, such as the
Municipal Pension Plan, are the employer's contributions due to the plan in the period.

(k) Non-financial capital assets:

Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use in
the provision of services. They have useful lives extending beyond the current year and are
not intended for sale in the ordinary course of operations.

(iy Tangible capital assets

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost which includes amounts that are directly
attributable to acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset. The
costs, less residual value, of the tangible capital assets, excluding land, are amortized
on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Asset Useful life - years
Buildings 20-50
Furniture, equipment, technology and

motor vehicles 5-25
Roads, bridges and highways 10 - 80
Water infrastructure 35-100
Sewer infrastructure 50 - 100
Drainage infrastructure 50-100

Tangible capital assets are written down when conditions indicate that they no longer
contribute to the City's ability to provide goods and services, or when the value of future
economic benefits associated with the asset are less than the book value of the asset.

DRAFT - April 10, 2014, 3:15 PM 9
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF VICTORIA

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

DRAFT
Year ended December 31, 2013

1. Significant accounting policies (continued):
(k) Non-financial capital assets (continued):
(i) Tangible capital assets (continued)

Amortization is charged in the year of acquisition and in the year of disposal. Assets
under construction are not amortized until the asset is available for productive use.

(i) Contributions of tangible capital assets

Tangible capital assets received as contributions are recorded at their fair value at the
date of receipt and also are recorded as revenue.

(iii) Natural resources
Natural resources are not recognized as assets in the financial statements.
(iv) Works of art and cultural and historic assets

Works of art and cultural and historic assets are not recorded as assets in these
financial statements.

(v) Interest capitalization

The City does not capitalize interest costs associated with the acquisition or construction
of a tangible capital asset.

(vi) Leased tangible capital assets
Leases which transfer substantially all of the benefits and risks incidental to ownership
of property are accounted for as leased tangible capital assets. All other leases are
accounted for as operating leases and the related payments are charged to expenses
as incurred.

(vii) Inventories of supplies

Inventories of supplies held for consumption are recorded at the lower of cost and
replacement cost.
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF VICTORIA

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

DRAFT
Year ended December 31, 2013

1. Significant accounting policies (continued):
() Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Significant estimates include
assumptions used in estimating historical cost and useful lives of tangible capital assets,
estimating provisions for accrued liabilities and in performing actuarial valuations of
employee future benefits. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

(m) Foreign currency:

Monetary items denominated in U.S. dollars are converted to Canadian dollars for financial
statement purposes at exchange rates in effect at the reporting date. Non-monetary items
are translated at rates of exchange in effect when the assets were acquired or obligations
incurred. Revenues and expenses are translated at rates in effect at the time of the
transactions. Gains and losses on foreign currency translations are included as revenue
(expenses).

(n) Change in accounting policy:

The City adopted Public Sector Accounting Standard PS 3510, "Tax Revenue" effective
January 1, 2013. This standard was adopted on a prospective basis.

Under PS 3510, municipalities recognize property tax revenue using the approved mill rate
and the anticipated assessment. The standard requires that property tax revenue be reported
net of tax concessions. Tax transfers are reported as an expense and taxes levied on behalf
of others in a flow through arrangement are not reported in the statement of operations.

There were no adjustments as a result of the adoption of this standard.
(o) Future accounting pronouncements:

A number of new standards and amendments to standards are not yet effective for the year
ended December 31, 2013 and have not been applied in preparing these financial
statements. Those expected to potentially impact the financial statements of the City are as
follows:

(i) PS 3450 Financial Instruments:
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF VICTORIA

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

DRAFT
Year ended December 31, 2013

1. Significant accounting policies (continued):

Financial Instruments PS 3450 and Foreign Currency Translation PS 2601 have been
approved by the PSAB and are effective for years commencing on or after April 1, 2015. The
standards are to be adopted prospectively from the date of adoption. The new standards
provide comprehensive requirements for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of financial instruments and foreign currency transactions. Under PS 3450, all
financial instruments, including derivatives, are included on the statement of financial position
and are measured either at fair value or amortized cost based on the characteristics of the
instrument and the entity’s accounting policy choices.

(ii) PS 3260 Contaminated Sites:

This section establishes recognition, measurement and disclosure standards for liabilities
relating to contaminated sites. The City will be required to recognize a liability when
contamination exceeds an accepted environmental standard and the City is directly
responsible, or accepts responsibility for, the damage. The liability will be measured at the
City’s best estimate of the costs directly attributable to remediation of the contamination. The
Section is effective for fiscal periods beginning on or after April 1, 2014. The impact of
adoption of this standard is being evaluated by management and is not known or reasonably
estimable at this time.
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF VICTORIA

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

DRAFT
Year ended December 31, 2013

2. Cash and cash equivalents:

2013 2012
Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash $ 3,798,671 $ 6,101,033
MFA Money Market Funds 73,231,189 62,573,511

$ 77,029,860 $ 68,674,544

3. Accounts receivable:

2013 2012
Sewer $ 2494417 $ 1,888,841
Water 9,644,264 9,017,370
Grants 3,440,140 2,208,058
Miscellaneous 9,053,148 8,315,328
Valuation allowance (641,760) (761,409)

$ 23,990,209 $ 20,668,188

4. Investments:
Investments consist of bonds and government guaranteed investments and have costs that

approximate market values. They have stated interest rates of 1.56% - 4.94% and various
maturity dates to December 22, 2019.

5. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities:

2013 2012
Trade accounts payable $ 15,816,656 $ 12,888,644
Payroll accounts payable 6,283,072 4,219,856
Contract holdbacks 893,784 277,354
School authorities 837,855 875,909
Capital Regional District 398,210 365,982
Legal settlements 1,090,930 967,911
Integrated recreation 106,600 108,799
BC Transit 156,288 142,791
Regional Hospital District 105,181 102,929
BC Assessment Authority 25,029 25,804

$ 25,713,605 $ 19,975,979
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF VICTORIA
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6. Deferred revenue:

Deferred revenue includes the following:

2013 2012
Building permit fees $ 1,999,061 $ 2,092,533
Development cost charges 7,615,303 6,673,707
General operating deferred revenue 1,760,515 2,488,003
Total deferred revenue $ 11,374,879 $ 11,254,243
Schedule of Building Permit Fees
2013 2012
Opening balance of building permit fees $ 2,092,533 $ 700,942
Add:
Fees and contributions 1,651,399 2,914,675
3,743,932 3,615,617
Less: Revenue earned (1,744,871) (1,523,084)
$ 1,999,061 $ 2,092,533
Schedule of Development Cost Charges
2013 2012
Opening balance of unspent funds $ 6,673,707 $ 4,245,766
Add:
Development cost charges received during year 858,176 2,657,178
Interest earned 83,420 48,145
7,615,303 2,705,323
Less amount spent on projects and recorded as revenue - (277,382)
$ 7615303 $ 6,673,707
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6. Deferred revenue (continued):

Development Cost Charges include the following:

2013 2012
Water and environment $ 901,548 $ 890,418
Streets 19,752 19,508
Transportation 2,959,628 2,598,109
Water 289,082 248,914
Drainage 174,802 152,005
Sewage 1,027,484 851,617
Parkland acquisition 1,662,332 1,429,198
Parkland development 580,675 483,938

$ 7615303 $ 6,673,707

There were no waivers and/or reductions in development cost charges during 2013 or 2012.

7. Long-term debt:
The City issues debt instruments through the MFA, pursuant to security issuing bylaws under
authority of the Community Charter, to finance certain capital expenditures. Sinking fund
balances, managed by the MFA, are used to reduce long-term debt.

Interest rates on long-term debt range from 3.89% to 5.89%. The weighted average interest rate
for 2013 was 4.96 % (2012 - 4.96%).

(a) Gross amount of debt and the repayment and actuarial adjustments to retire the debt are as

follows:
Repayment
and actuarial Net debt Net debt
Gross debt  adjustments 2013 2012

General Capital Fund $ 60,914,785 §$ 12,230,602 $ 48,684,183 §$ 51,793,520
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7. Long-term debt (continued):

(b) Current period and future aggregate payments of net outstanding debenture debt, including
sinking fund payments, over the next five years are as follows:

General

Capital Fund
2014 $ 1,850,286
2015 1,864,832
2016 1,879,944
2017 1,895,644
2018 1,911,955

Scheduled debt repayments may be suspended in the event of excess sinking fund earnings
within the MFA. Principal paid during the year was $2,636,284 (2012 - $4,742,141). Interest
paid during the year was $2,848,064 (2012 - $3,470,638).

8. Obligations under capital lease:

The City has financed a fire truck by entering into capital leasing arrangements with the MFA. The
City will acquire ownership of the equipment at the end of the lease term. Repayments are due as

shown:

2014 $ 151,347

2015 151,347

2016 138,974

441,668

Less amount representing interest (at a rate of 2%) 12,989

Present value of net minimum capital lease payments $ 428,679
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9. Employee future benefit obligations:

The City provides sick leave and certain benefits to its employees. These amounts will require
funding in future periods and are recorded as follows:

Fire and Total Total
other Police 2013 2012
Employee benefit obligations:
Vested benefits $ 3,357,470 $ 6,042,739 $ 9,400,209 $ 8,403,667
Non-vested benefits 3,507,163 1,232,356 4,739,519 4,862,751

Accrued employee benefit obligation 6,864,633 7,275,095 14,139,728 13,266,418

Less funded amount (4,250,952) (5,713,841) (9,964,793) (9,403,737)
Unfunded employee benefit obligation $ 2,613,681 $ 1,561,254 $ 4,174,935 $ 3,862,681

Vested benefits represent the actuarially determined value of the City's liability for future employee
benefits which the City is contractually obligated to pay upon retirement to an employee,
independent of his or her future employment. These benefits include sick leave and vacation in
year of retirement for Police and Firefighters, deferred vacation for Police, and lump sum
retirement payments.

Non-vested benefits represent the actuarially determined value of the City's liability for future
employee benefits which the City is not contractually obligated to pay upon retirement to an
employee, but is instead conditional on future employment. These benefits include sick leave,
long service leave, personal leave program and benefit continuation while disabled.

Information about the City’s benefit plans is as follows:

2013 2012

Accrued benefit obligation:
Balance, beginning of year $ 13,266,418 $ 12,297,354
Service cost 1,151,200 1,116,600
Interest cost 527,600 505,000
Benefits payments (909,000) (837,000)
Actuarial loss 46,841 103,232
Pension overcontributions 56,669 81,232
Accrued benefit liability, end of year $ 14,139,728 $ 13,266,418
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9. Employee future benefit obligations (continued):

The accrued benefit obligations and the net periodic benefit cost were estimated by actuarial
valuation as of December 31, 2011.

The significant actuarial assumptions adopted in measuring the City’s accrued benefit obligations
are as follows:

2013 2012
Discount rates 4.00 % 3.50 %
Expected future inflation rates 2.50 % 2.50 %
Expected wage and salary increases 2.58% t0 4.63% 2.58% t0 4.63%

The difference between the actuarially determined accrued benefit obligation as at December 31,
2013 of $13,772,909 and the accrued benefit liability of $14,139,728 is pension over-contributions
of $366,819. There is an unamortized actuarial loss of $701,792 at December 31, 2013 that is
being amortized over a period equal to the employee’s average remaining service lifetime of 11
years.

Other pension plans

The City and its employees contribute to the Municipal Pension Plan (the Plan), a jointly trusteed
pension plan. The Board of Trustees, representing plan members and employers, is responsible
for overseeing the management of the Plan, including investment of the assets and administration
of benefits. The Plan is a multi-employer contributory pension plan. Basic pension benefits
provided are based on a formula. The plan has about 179,000 active members and
approximately 71,000 retired members. Active members include approximately 1,200 contributors
from the City of Victoria.

The most recent actuarial valuation as at December 31, 2012 indicated a $1,370 million funding
deficit for basic pension benefits. The next valuation will be as at December 31, 2015, with results
available in 2016. Employers participating in the Plan record their pension expense as the amount
of employer contributions made during the fiscal year (defined contribution pension plan
accounting). This is because the Plan records accrued liabilities and accrued assets for the plan
in aggregate with the result that there is no consistent and reliable basis for allocating the
obligation, assets and cost to the individual employers participating in the Plan.

The City of Victoria paid $9,163,984 (2012 - $8,226,452) for employer contributions and City of
Victoria employees paid $7,204,310 (2012 - $6,494,360) for the plan in fiscal 2013.
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9. Employee future benefit obligations (continued):
GVLRA - CUPE Long-Term Disability Trust

The Trust was established January 1, 1987 as a result of negotiations between the Greater
Victoria Labour Relations Association representing a number of employers and the Canadian
Union of Public Employees representing a number of CUPE locals. The Trust’s sole purpose is to
provide a long-term disability income benefit plan. The City and its employees each contribute
equal amounts into the Trust. The total plan provision for approved and unreported claims was
actuarially determined as of December 31, 2011. At December 31, 2013, the total plan provision
for approved and unreported claims was $18,615,400 with a net deficit of $5,484,632 . The City
paid $528,571 (2012 - $343,443) for employer contributions and City employees paid $528,571
(2012 - $343,443) for employee contributions to the plan in 2013.
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10.

Tangible capital assets:
Furniture,
equipment, Sewer Drainage
Land and land technology and Roads, bridges Water infra- infra- Assets under Total Total
improvements Buildings  motor vehicles and highways infrastructure structure structure construction 2013 2012

Cost:
Balance,

beginning of

year $135,784,271 85,145,510 50,884,754 83,685,450 51,259,470 16,108,253 12,078,440 28,301,635  $463,247,783  $433,994,406
Additions 909,305 8,092,890 7,771,803 2,694,686 1,817,885 332,428 358,005 16,541,945 38,518,947 32,377,774
Disposals/

transfers - (2,467,856) (567,933) (84,406) - - - (9,996,737) (13,116,932) (3,124,397)
Balance, end of 136,693,576 90,770,544 58,088,624 86,295,730 53,077,355 16,440,681 12,436,445 34,846,843 488,649,798 463,247,783

year
Accumulated amortization:
Balance,

beginning of

year 80,175 33,501,202 31,332,533 42,323,692 7,327,473 4,988,007 2,510,735 - 122,063,817 113,792,448
Disposals - (90,914) (565,648) (84,406) - - - - (740,968) (395,407)
Amortization 35,165 2,084,591 4,454,874 2,095,467 624,842 167,957 121,369 - 9,584,265 8,666,776
Balance, end of

year 115,340 35,494,879 35,221,759 44,334,753 7,952,315 5,155,964 2,632,104 - 130,907,114 122,063,817
Net book value,

end of year $136,578,236 55,275,665 22,866,865 41,960,977 45,125,040 11,284,717 9,804,341 34,846,843  $357,742,684  $341,183,966

20
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10. Tangible capital assets (continued):
(a) Work in progress
Assets under construction totaling $34,846,843 (2012 - $28,301,635) have not been
amortized. Amortization of these assets will commence when the asset is available for
service.
(b) Contributed assets
No contributed assets have been recognized during 2013 or 2012.

(c) Tangible capital assets disclosed at nominal values

Where an estimate of fair value could not be made, the tangible capital asset was recognized
at a nominal value.

(d) Works of art and historical treasures

The City manages and controls various works of art and non-operational historical cultural
assets. These assets are not recorded as tangible capital assets.

(e) Write-down of tangible capital assets

No write-down of tangible capital assets occurred during 2013 or 2012.
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11. Accumulated surplus:

Accumulated surplus consists of individual fund surplus and reserves and reserve funds as
follows:

2013 2012

Surplus:
Equity in tangible capital assets
Operating Fund
Unfunded employee benefit obligations

Total surplus

$308,629,822 $288,820,527
3,342,583 1,125,337
(4,174,935) (3,862,681)
307,797,470 286,083,183

Reserves:
Financial Stability Reserves 2,598,515 3,227,324
Equipment and Infrastructure Replacement Fund 52,665,034 53,037,267
Gas Tax 6,436,998 5,137,696
Economic Development 734,445 725,378
Debt Reduction 21,255,012 13,335,722
Self Insurance 3,733,373 3,687,282
Working Capital Fund 3,837,082 3,789,711
Tax Sale Lands Fund 9,663,642 10,326,723
Parks and Greenways Acquisition Fund 2,269,464 2,241,446
Local Amenities 102,044 100,784
Affordable Housing 1,896,984 2,051,341
Climate Action 380,950 253,415
Water Utility 4,900,973 1,844,385
Sewer Utility 16,403,688 13,434,671
Tree conservation 339,873 306,403
Art in public places 301,565 234,205
Downtown Core Area Public Realm Improvements 57,373 -
Heritage Building Seismic Upgrades 19,124 -

Total reserves 127,596,139 113,733,753

Other assets:
MFA Debt reserve fund 814,660 776,794

$436,208,269 $400,593,730
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12. Taxation:

Taxation revenue, reported on the statement of operations, is comprised of the following:

2013 2012
General taxation:
Property and business taxes $194,541,230 $187,960,454
Utility 1% tax 1,377,495 1,341,869
Special assessments:
Boulevard frontage 563,885 575,736
Local improvement - 1,071
Specified area improvement 129,053 129,053
Sewer frontage 762,423 738,135
Hotel tax:
Tourism Victoria - Destination Marketing Commission 2,058,724 1,828,573
Victoria Conference Centre 581,200 576,016
200,014,010 193,150,907
Less taxes levied for other authorities:
Capital Regional District 14,404,133 12,083,313
School Authorities 50,143,568 50,579,860
Regional Hospital District 7,128,838 6,916,888
Municipal Finance Authority 4,771 4,808
BC Assessment Authority 1,589,638 1,597,657
BC Transit 8,253,915 7,398,205
Business Improvement Association 961,188 942,731
82,486,051 79,523,462
$117,527,959 $113,627,445
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13. Government transfers:

The City recognizes the transfer of government funding as expenses or revenues in the period
that the events giving rise to the transfer occurred. The Government transfers reported on the
statement of operations and accumulated surplus are:

2013 2012
Traffic fine revenue sharing $ 1,867,217 $ 3,439,150
Jail 59,288 73,998
Gas Tax 2,146,763 5,778,867
Infrastructure grants:
General capital 2,183,326 1,392,358
Sewer - -
Water - -
Johnson Street Bridge 3,935,188 2,485,703
Cost sharing:
General capital 162,799 45,000
Total revenue $ 10,354,581 $ 13,215,076

The Traffic Fine Revenue Sharing program is an unconditional grant provided to municipalities to
assist in ensuring community safety and addressing community specific strategic priorities. The
program returns 100% of net revenues from traffic violations to municipalities that are directly
responsible for paying for policing.

Gas Tax is provided by the Government of Canada. The use of the funding is established by a
funding agreement between the City and the Union of British Columbia Municipalities. These
funds may be used towards designated infrastructure projects that achieve positive environmental
results.

Infrastructure grants related to the Johnson Street Bridge Replacement Project are restricted to
eligible expenses as defined by the funding agreement established between the City, Union of
British Columbia Municipalities and The Government of Canada's Build Canada Fund Program.
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14. Trust funds:

Trust funds administered by the City have not been included in the statement of financial position
nor have their operations been included in the statement of operations and accumulated surplus.

2013 2012
Ross Bay Cemetery $ 868,370 $ 840,761
Nature Interpretation Centre 589,951 582,668
Bastion Square Revitalization 226,148 223,356

$ 1,684,469 $ 1,646,785

The Ross Bay Cemetery Trust is a fund for the non-commercial Ross Bay Cemetery and is used
for perpetual maintenance. The Nature Interpretation Centre is a trust for the construction of a
nature interpretation centre in Beacon Hill Park. The Bastion Square Revitalization Trust is a trust
received from the Bastion Square Association Society for the sole purpose of improving Bastion
Square.

15. Commitments:

In the normal course of business, the City enters into commitments for both capital and
operational expenses. These commitments have been budgeted for within the appropriate annual
budget and have been approved by Council.

In 2010 residents authorized the City, by referendum, to borrow up to $49,200,000 for the
planning, study, design, and construction of a bridge to replace the Johnson Street Bridge and to
decommission the existing bridge. The City has assumed a $10,200,000 low interest loan from
the CMHC under the Municipal Infrastructure Lending Program in respect of the authorized
borrowing for this project. The estimated cost for the Johnson Street Bridge is $92.8 million and
completion is expected by March 2016. At December 31, 2013, construction contracts of $75
million were in process with estimated costs to complete of $58 million.

On March 23, 2011, the City signed a contribution agreement with the Federal Government
agreeing to financial assistance towards the project of $21 million through the Building Canada
Fund. On March 3, 2012, the Federal Government announced an additional commitment of $16.5
million towards the project through the Federal Gas Tax Fund.
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16. Contingent liabilities:

The City is a defendant in various lawsuits. The City records an accrual in respect of legal claims
that are likely to be successful and for which a liability amount is reasonably determinable. The
remaining claims, should they be successful as a result of litigation, will be recorded when a
liability is likely and determinable. Included in accumulated surplus is an insurance reserve of
$3,733,373 (2012 - $3,687,282) which is maintained to offset settlements and insurance coverage
has been maintained to provide for insurable claims should they exceed the liability deductible of
$1,000,000 in any year. In 2008, the City joined the Municipal Insurance Association and all
insurable claims from that date forward are subject to a liability deductible of $250,000 in any year.

Under borrowing arrangements with the Municipal Finance Authority, the City is required to lodge
security by means of demand notes and interest-bearing cash deposits based on the amount of
the borrowing. As a condition of these borrowings, a portion of the debenture proceeds is
withheld by the MFA as a debt reserve fund. These deposits are included in the City's financial
assets as other assets and are held by the MFA as security against the possibility of debt
repayment default. If the debt is repaid without default, the deposits are refunded to the City. At
December 31, 2013 the balance of the deposits was $814,660 (2012 - $776,794). At December
31, 2013 there were contingent demand notes of $1,794,839 (2012 - $1,794,839) which are not
included in the financial statements of the City.

Capital Regional District debt, under provisions of the Local Government Act, is a direct, joint and
several liability of the Capital Regional District and each member municipality within the Capital
Regional District, including the City.

The City is reviewing environmental objectives and potential liabilities for its activities and
properties including potential site reclamation obligations. The amount of any such obligations is
not presently determinable.

The City is a shareholder and member of Capital Regional Emergency Service
Telecommunications (CREST) Incorporated, which provides centralized emergency
communications and related public safety information services to municipalities, regional districts,
the provincial and federal governments and their agencies, and emergency service organizations
throughout the Greater Victoria region and the Gulf Islands. Members’ obligations to share in
funding ongoing operations and any additional costs relating to capital assets are to be
contributed pursuant to a Members’ Agreement.
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16. Contingent liabilities (continued):

In 2011, the Federal Government of Canada entered into an agreement with the Capital Regional
District to provide a financial contribution for the new, permanent, safe, transitional and supportive
housing. Subsequently, the Capital Regional District entered into a sub-project funding
agreement in which $1,200,000 was contributed to the City towards the purchase of two
properties within the City. The agreement states that if the properties are not operated for their
intended purpose or are sold and the proceeds of disposition are not applied to providing similar
services then the City will be required to repay the contribution amount. The amount of the
required repayment is dependent on the length of the time that the intended purpose of the
contribution is met and extends to March 31, 2026 at which point no further repayment is required.

17. Budget data:

The budget data presented in these financial statements is based upon the 2013 operating and
capital budgets approved by Council on May 2, 2013. Amortization was not contemplated on
development of the budget and, as such, has not been included. The chart below reconciles the
approved budget to the budget figures reported in these financial statements.

Budget amount

Revenues:
Operating budget $280,422,811
Capital budget 83,149,750
363,572,561
Less:
Transfers from other funds (64,726,448)
Collections for other Governments (80,530,000)
Total revenue 218,316,113
Expenses:
Operating budget 280,422,811
Capital budget 83,149,750
363,572,561
Less:
Capital expenditures (83,149,750)
Transfer to other funds (25,975,723)
Debt principal payments (6,439,037)
Collections for other Governments (80,530,000)
Total expenses 167,478,051
Annual surplus $ 50,838,062
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18. Segmented information:

The City of Victoria is a diversified municipal organization that provides a wide range of services to
its citizens. For management reporting purposes, the City’s operations and activities are organized
and reported by Fund. Funds were created for the purpose of recording specific activities to attain
certain objectives in accordance with special regulations, restrictions or limitations. City services
are provided by departments and their activities reported within these funds. Certain functions that
have been separately disclosed in the segmented information, along with the services they
provide, are as follows:

(i) General Government:

The General Government operations provide the functions of Building Services and
Maintenance, Corporate Administration, Finance, Human Resources, Legislative Services
and any other functions categorized as non-departmental.

(i) Protective Services:

Protective Services is comprised of four different functions, including the City's Emergency
Management Agency, Fire, Police and Regulatory and Development Services. The
Emergency Management Agency prepares the City to be more prepared and able to respond
to, recover from, and be aware of, the devastating effects of a disaster or major catastrophic
event that will impact the community. The Fire Department is responsible for providing
critical, life-saving services in preventing or minimizing the loss of life and property from fire
and natural or man-made emergencies. The Police Department ensures the safety of the
lives and property of Victoria as well as Esquimalt citizens through the enforcement of
municipal bylaws, criminal laws and the laws of British Columbia, the maintenance of law and
order, and the prevention of crime. The mandate of the Regulatory and Development
Services is to promote, facilitate and enforce general compliance with the provisions of
bylaws that pertain to the health, safety and welfare of the community and provide a full
range of planning services related to zoning, development permits, variance permits, and
current regulatory issues.

(iii) Transportation Services:

Transportation Services is responsible for a wide variety of transportation functions such as
Parking, Engineering Operations and Streets. Services provided include infrastructure
development and maintenance, ftraffic control, transportation planning, review of land
development impacts on transportation, traffic management, pedestrian and cycling issues,
on-street parking regulations, including street signs and painting as well as traffic signal
timing.
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18. Segmented information (continued):
(iv) Environmental and Public Health Services:

The Environmental and Public Health Services is comprised of four sections in the areas of
Solid Waste Services, Storm Drains, Street Cleaning and Public Works. The Solid Waste
Collection and Recycling Operations Section is responsible for the collection of household
garbage. Storm Drains section provides the design, inspection and technical supervision of
civil engineering projects related to the construction and maintenance of the storm drain
collection systems to protect public health. The Street Cleaning Section is responsible for the
collection and disposal of litter and debris from streets, sidewalks and squares. The Public
Works department is responsible for the delivery of municipal public works services related
to the planning, development and maintenance of roadway systems, the maintenance of
parks and open space, and street lighting.

(v) Community Planning:

Community Planning works to achieve the City’'s community planning goals through the
official community plan, neighbourhood plans, special sector and precinct plans, urban
design and other policy initiatives. The division is also responsible for the heritage program,
downtown vitality and public use of space.

(vi) Parks, Recreation and Community Development:

Parks is responsible for the maintenance, planning and development of all park facilities such
as ornamental gardens, natural ecosystems, sport and entertainment venues and
playgrounds for recreational and cultural enjoyment in a beautiful and safe environment;
preserves and enhances green spaces on public lands. Recreation Services facilitates the
provision of recreation and wellness programs and services through the City’s pool, arena,
Royal Athletic Park, Community and Seniors’ Centres. Community Development co-ordinates
and leads efforts to enhance our neighbourhoods, foster arts and culture, and works to
create a city that is vibrant and people centred. This function also includes the Victoria
Conference Centre which is one of the largest conference facilities in BC and plays a
significant economic impact on the local economy.

(vii) Water and Sewer Utilities:

The Sewer Utility protects the environment and human health from the impacts of liquid
wastes generated as a result of human occupation and development in the City. The Water
Utility delivers clean, safe and aesthetically pleasing potable water, in accordance with the
Provincial Drinking Water Protection Act, to the citizens of the City of Victoria and Township
of Esquimalt. The water is for the purpose of domestic consumption and fire fighting.
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18. Segmented information (continued):

Certain allocation methodologies have been employed in the preparation of the segmented
financial information. The General Fund reports on municipal services that are funded primarily by
taxation such as property taxes and other tax revenues. Taxation and payments-in-lieu of taxes
are apportioned to the General Fund services based on budgeted taxation revenue as presented
in the financial plan.

The allocation to other expenses includes the interdepartmental recoveries of asset charges
which results in negative expense balances for certain departments.

The accounting policies used in these segments are consistent with those followed in the
preparation of the financial statements as disclosed in note 1.
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF VICTORIA

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2013

18. Segmented information (continued):

Parks
Environmental Recreation
and Public and
General Protective Transportation Health Community Community
2013 Government Services Services Services Planning Development  Water Utility = Sewer Utility Total
Revenue:
Taxation $ 41,511,208 §$ 50,814,961 $ 5,521,969 $ 7,976,977 $ 2,401,142 §$ 14,541,677 $ - 8 762,423 $123,530,357
Goods and services 290,194 7,465,944 11,107,361 2,592,561 385 9,506,116 18,564,956 7,700,721 57,228,238
Government transfers 4,552,176 1,867,217 3,935,188 - - - - - 10,354,581
Other 7,900,555 356,696 5,506,450 - 2,629,005 1,817,089 221,884 - 18,431,679
Total revenue 54,254,133 60,504,818 26,070,968 10,569,538 5,030,532 25,864,882 18,786,840 8,463,144 209,544,855
Expenses:
Salaries and wages 13,024,096 57,391,609 11,172,494 4,112,906 2,688,652 11,913,059 2,159,542 1,675,390 104,137,748
Materials, supplies and
services 4,699,943 3,752,674 8,537,850 2,594,095 100,761 8,956,053 9,303,185 700,030 38,644,591
Interest and other 14,612,546 2,156,744 (2,252,045) (330,676) 94,326 3,784,692 808,369 2,689,757 21,563,713
Amortization 4,550,766 893,711 2,887,012 197,251 - 262,725 624,842 167,957 9,584,264
Total expenses 36,887,351 64,194,738 20,345,311 6,573,576 2,883,739 24,916,529 12,895,938 5,233,134 173,930,316

Annual surplus (deficit) $ 17,366,782 $ (3,689,920) $ 5,725,657 $ 3,995,962 $ 2,146,793 $ 948,353 $ 5,890,902 $ 3,230,010 $ 35,614,539
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF VICTORIA

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2013

18.

19.

Segmented information (continued):
Parks
Environmental Recreation
and Public and
General Protective Transportation Health Community Community
2012 Government Services Services Services Planning Development Water Utility = Sewer Utility Total
Revenue:
Taxation $ 39,345,700 §$ 50,001,348 $ 5,133,652 $ 6,556,098 $ 2,539,765 ¢ 15,007,418 $ - 8 738,135 $119,322,116
Goods and services 354,392 7,301,093 10,415,051 2,880,019 183 9,509,303 16,441,463 6,594,678 53,496,182
Government transfers 7,290,223 3,439,150 2,485,703 - - - - - 13,215,076
Other 7,009,633 2,286,834 6,363,089 141,251 283,247 2,323,163 205,982 14,639 18,627,838
Total revenue 53,999,948 63,028,425 24,397,495 9,577,368 2,823,195 26,839,884 16,647,445 7,347,452 204,661,212
Expenses:
Salaries and wages 13,496,188 54,239,322 10,701,402 3,733,038 2,821,364 11,973,864 2,121,429 1,537,880 100,624,487
Materials, supplies and
services 4,668,782 3,627,322 8,434,118 2,212,213 140,853 8,462,034 9,234,343 588,268 37,367,933
Interest and other 16,494,637 2,780,189 (1,580,620) (3,547) 166,604 4,687,468 661,488 1,057,665 24,263,884
Amortization 4,462,782 375,142 2,771,662 137,833 - 223,625 532,256 163,476 8,666,776
Total expenses 39,122,389 61,021,975 20,326,562 6,079,537 3,128,821 25,346,991 12,549,516 3,347,289 170,923,080

Annual surplus (deficit) $ 14,877,559 $ 2,006,450 $ 4,070,933 $ 3,497,831 $ (305,626) $ 1,492,893 §$ 4,097,929 $ 4,000,163 $ 33,738,132

Comparative information:

Certain 2012 comparative information has been reclassified to conform with the financial
statement presentation adopted for the current year.
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|. Audit findings

Status

As of the date of this report, we have completed the audit of the financial statements, with the exception
of certain remaining procedures which include:

e completing our discussions with the Governance and Priorities committee

¢ obtaining evidence of the Council's approval of the financial statements

o receipt of signed management representation letter

Please refer to the draft financial statements for our draft audit report. We will update you on any
significant matters arising from the completion of the audit, including completion of the above
procedures. Our audit report will be dated upon completion of any remaining procedures.

Audit scope

Our responsibilities

o Our responsibilities in carrying out our audit, as well as management’s responsibilities, are set out in
the engagement letter included in the appendices to this report.

Materiality

o We determine materiality in order to plan and perform the audit and to evaluate the effects of
identified misstatements on the audit and of any uncorrected misstatements on the financial
statements;

e For the current year, materiality of $3,500,000 has been determined.
Significant financial reporting risks

The significant financial reporting risks identified during our audit planning are listed below:

Estimates related to Contingent Liabilities

Risk of material misstatement

e Public sector accounting standards require that disclosure be made when contingent liabilities are
likely or not determinable. Liabilities should be recorded when the loss can be reasonably
estimated. Given the nature of contingent liabilities, there is often difficulty in estimation of the loss.

o The City is currently insured through the Municipal Insurance Association ("MIA") with a deductible
of $250,000. Prior to 2008, the City's insurance only covered claims in excess of $1,000,000.
Claims prior to 2008 are only covered to this extent.
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e Management has prepared a general estimate of losses on identified claims of approximately
$1,100,000 (2012: $968,000) based on the estimated deductibles in the MIA report and the
estimated quantification on the claims prior to mid-2008. Disclosure of claims has been included in
the financial statements.

Summary of planned audit approach

¢ We have performed inquiries with management, including the City Solicitor and obtained
confirmations directly from the City’s external legal counsel and MIA

¢ We concur with management’s treatment of the above matters.

Timing
The following were the key dates of the audit:

Key deliverables and expected dates

Deliverables Date(s)
Conduct year-end field work March 3 - March 21
Provide audit opinion on financial statements April 24

Significant audit, accounting and reporting matters

Significant audit and reporting matters and matters related to management’s judgment and
estimates

Estimate for retroactive pay

e The collective agreement between the City and the Firefighter's union expired on December 31,
2011. The collective agreement between the Victoria Police Board and the Police union expired on
December 31, 2012. No new agreements have been settled as of March 2014. As a result, the
Firefighters continue to be paid at 2011 rates and the Police at 2012 rates. When the agreement is
settled, any increases to wages will have to be retroactively paid for services rendered in the related
years of service.

e The collective agreement with the Firefighter's union covering the previous contract term up to
December 31, 2011 was ratified on February 5, 2014. The retroactive pay that was paid was
consistent with amounts accrued by managment at December 31, 2013.

e Since the benefit of these services was realized by the City in past years, a liability is to be accrued
for the estimated amount of the settlement.
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¢ Management has estimated the settlement based on their understanding of similar settlements of
collective bargaining agreements in other municipalities across the province.

KPMG comments

o We have reviewed management's calculations and assumptions and agree with their treatment.

Misstatements

¢ No misstatements were noted.

Significant deficiencies

¢ No significant deficiencies were noted.

Change order for Johnson Street Bridge

¢ A change order for $7.9m has been received from the contractor in regard to the Johnson Street
Bridge contract. This has not been included in the estimated costs of $92.8 million disclosed in the
financial statements.

KPMG comments

¢ As the change order has not been accepted by management, KPMG concurs with management’s
treatment. The current commitment disclosure for the estimated costs to complete the bridge is
considered appropriate for the Johnson Street Bridge contract. It does not include any further costs
that might be incurred in respect to this matter.

Misstatements

¢ No misstatements were noted.

Significant deficiencies

¢ No significant deficiencies were noted.
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Tangible Capital Asset adjustment

o During a review of replacement costs by City staff, an error was identified in the base cost used for
Domestic Water Services in 2009 when the City first recorded tangible capital assets. The estimated
historical cost adjustment using the discounted model originally applied, results is a net book value
difference that is less than materiallity. This amount has not been adjusted given the high level of
judgement and estimation involved in the original accounting.

KPMG comments

e Historical costs were based on estimates and best information at the time of adoption in 2009.
Differences from actual were expected. Although this is an error resulting from data entry, it is not
considered by management or KPMG to be material to the recorded value of tangible capital assets.

¢ Management indicates that a comprehensive review of replacement costs will be conducted in fiscal
2014 to relook at historical costs and ensure all assets are being accounted for appropriately, given
the City now has five years of experience with tracking and recording costs for tangible capital
assets.

Misstatements

¢ Given the significant amount of estimation used in determining historical costs for tangible capital
assets, the effect of the error is not likely to impact any user’s decisions on the overall financial
statement results.

Significant deficiencies

¢ No significant deficiencies were noted.
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Other matters

Summary of Audit Procedures

¢ Our audit focused on the areas identified during our audit planning as listed below:
- Cash, investments and debt balances were confirmed with the respective financial institutions.

- Taxation revenues, including those collected on behalf of other governments, were tested by way
of substantive analytical procedures. An expectation was prepared based on the approved property
tax rates and the assessed property values.

- Government transfer revenues and deferred revenues were substantively tested by obtaining grant
terms and conditions and testing to determine if the criteria in relation to the grants had been met.

- Salaries and wage expense included a test of controls surrounding management review and
verification as well as substantive analytical procedures.

- Tangible capital asset additions and amortization were substantively tested.

- Employee future benefit obligations were determined by actuaries. Confirmation was received
from the actuary engaged by the City in regards to their work performed. Further, assumptions used
by the actuary were investigated for reasonableness and consistency with accounting principles and
source data used in preparing the estimate was tested on a sample basis.

- Disclosures were reviewed for appropriateness of presentation and disclosure under Public sector
accounting standards.

KPMG comments

¢ No changes were made from the audit planning strategy in conducting the 2013 audit.

Misstatements

¢ No misstatements were noted.

Significant deficiencies

¢ No significant deficiencies were noted.
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RG Facilities event attendance and surcharge reporting

o We performed specified auditing procedures in connection with RG Facilities event attendance and
surcharge reporting in the quarterly submissions to the City of Victoria at March 31, 2013 and June
30, 2013.

e We noted that the report submissions for the quarters ended March 31, 2013 and June 30, 2013
were both received by the City on November 7, 2013 and payment for both quarters was not
received until December 17, 2013. This was not in compliance with the contract terms which require
that the Ticket Revenue Share and the statement should be remitted to the City at the end of each
quarter of a year.

KPMG comments

o There were no adjustments identified during our performance of the specified procedures.

Misstatements

¢ No misstatements were noted.

Significant deficiencies

¢ No significant deficiencies were noted.
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Significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices
Significant accounting policies

¢ Significant accounting policies included in the financial statements are consistent from a year-to-year
basis and are as disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Significant accounting estimates

¢ Management's process for identification and making accounting estimates included in the financial
statements are consistent with prior year.

Significant disclosures

¢ Significant disclosures included in the financial statements are consistent with prior year.
Misstatements

Identification of misstatements

Misstatements identified during the audit have been categorized as follows:

Uncorrected misstatements

We have not identified misstatements that remain uncorrected.
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Independence letter

Chartered Accountants

St. Andrew’s Square Il Telephone (250) 480-3500
800-730 View Street Telefax (250) 480-3539
Victoria BC V8W 3Y7 Internet www.kpmg.ca

To the Mayor and Management of the Corporation of the City of Victoria

Professional standards specify that we communicate to you in writing all relationships between the City
(and its related entities) and our firm, that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence.

In determining which relationships to report, we are required to consider relevant rules and related
interpretations prescribed by the relevant professional bodies and any applicable legislation or regulation,
covering such matters as:

a) provision of services in addition to the audit engagement
b) other relationships such as:

e holding a financial interest, either directly or indirectly, in a client

e holding a position, either directly or indirectly, that gives the right or responsibility to exert
significant influence over the financial or accounting policies of a client

e personal or business relationships of immediate family, close relatives, partners or retired
partners, either directly or indirectly, with a client

e economic dependence on a client

Provision of services

The following summarizes the professional services rendered by us to the City (and its related entities)
from January 01, 2013 up to the date of our auditors' report:

Description of Professional Service Fees
Audit
e Audits of the City's financial statements, School Tax compliance and Home

Owner Grant Treasurer/Auditor Certificate inclusive of taxes. $55,500
e Third party contract compliance review $2,092

Professional standards require that we communicate the related safeguards that have been applied to
eliminate identified threats to independence or to reduce them to an acceptable level. Although we have
policies and procedures to ensure that we did not provide any prohibited services and to ensure that we
have not audited our own work, we have applied the following safeguards regarding to the threats to
independence listed above:

e \We instituted policies and procedures to prohibit us from making management decisions or
assuming responsibility for such decisions

e \We obtained management’s acknowledgement of responsibility for the results of the work
performed by us regarding non-audit services and we have not made any management decisions or
assumed responsibility for such decisions
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Other relationships

We are aware of the following other relationships between our firm and the City (and its related entities)
that have previously been communicated to you that may continue to reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence from January 01, 2013 up to the date of our auditors' report:

Relationships Safeguards

Long association of senior personnel with an Involvement of a new audit manager, quality

assurance client control review partner, changes in personnel
at the City

Confirmation of independence

We confirm that we are independent with respect to the City (and its related entities) within the relevant
rules and related interpretations prescribed by the relevant professional bodies and any applicable
legislation or regulation from January 1, 2013 up to the date of our auditors’ report.

Other matters

This letter is confidential and intended solely for use by those charged with governance in carrying out
and discharging their responsibilities and should not be used for any other purposes.

KPMG shall have no responsibility for loss or damages or claims, if any, to or by any third party as this
letter has not been prepared for, and is not intended for, and should not be used by, any third party or for
any other purpose.

Yours very truly,
Kins X
/

Chartered Accountants
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Management representation letter

Prior to release of the auditors’ report, the Director of Finance and Manager of Accounting will be
providing KPMG with a letter confirming their conclusion that the accounts are fairly presented, complete
and accurately reported in the financial statements. A copy of this letter is included in the following
pages.

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We are writing at your request to confirm our understanding that your audit was for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the financial statements (hereinafter referred to as "financial statements") of
The Corporation of the City of Victoria (“the Entity") as at and for the period ended December 31, 2012.

We confirm that the representations we make in this letter are in accordance with the definitions as set
out in Attachment | to this letter.

We confirm that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we considered
necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves:

General:

1) We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the engagement letter dated
November 02, 2010, for:

a) the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements and believe that these financial
statements have been prepared and present fairly in accordance with the relevant financial
reporting framework

b) providing you with all relevant information, such as all financial records and related data and
complete minutes of meetings, or summaries of actions of recent meetings for which minutes
have not yet been prepared, of shareholders, board of directors and committees of the board of
directors that may affect the financial statements, and access to such relevant information

c) such internal control as management determined is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

d) ensuring that all transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in
the financial statements

Internal control over financial reporting:

2) We have communicated to you all deficiencies in the design and implementation or maintenance
of internal control over financial reporting of which management is aware.

Fraud & non-compliance with laws and regulations:
3) We have disclosed to you:

a) the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially
misstated as a result of fraud

b) all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware of and that affects the
Entity and involves: management, employees who have significant roles in internal control, or
others, where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements

c) all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the Entity’s financial
statements, communicated by employees, former employees, regulators, or others
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d) all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations,
including all aspects of contractual agreements, whose effects should be considered when
preparing financial statements

e) all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be considered when
preparing the financial statements

Subsequent events:

4) All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which the relevant financial
reporting framework requires adjustment or disclosure in the financial statements have been
adjusted or disclosed.

Related parties:

5) We have disclosed to you the identity of the Entity’s related parties and all the related party
relationships and transactions of which we are aware and all related party relationships and
transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the relevant
financial reporting framework.

Estimates:

6) Measurement methods and significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates,
including those measured at fair value, are reasonable.

Misstatements:

7)  We approve the corrected misstatements identified by you during the audit described in
Attachment Il.

Other:

8) We have complied with subsection 2 and 3 of section 124 of Part 8 of the School Act

9) The City’'s Home Owner Grant Certificate has been prepared and presents fairly the Home Owner
Grant information of the City in accordance with the provisions of Section 12 of the Home Owner
Grant Act.

Yours very truly,

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF VICTORIA

By: Suzanne Thompson, Acting Director of Finance

By: Laurel Westinghouse, Manager of Accounting
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Attachment | — Definitions

Materiality

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material.
Misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be material if they, individually or in the
aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of the financial statements. Judgments about materiality are made in light of surrounding circumstances,
and are affected by the size or nature of a misstatement, or a combination of both.

Fraud & error

Fraudulent financial reporting involves intentional misstatements including omissions of amounts or
disclosures in financial statements to deceive financial statement users.

Misappropriation of assets involves the theft of an entity’s assets. It is often accompanied by false or
misleading records or documents in order to conceal the fact that the assets are missing or have been
pledged without proper authorization.

An error is an unintentional misstatement in financial statements, including the omission of an amount or
a disclosure.
Related parties

In accordance with Canadian accounting standards for the public sector (PSAB) related party is defined
as:

e one party that has the ability to exercise, directly or indirectly , control, joint control or significant
influence over the other. Two or more parties are related when they are subject to common control,
joint control or common significant influence.

In accordance with Canadian accounting standards for the public sector (PSAB) a related party transaction
is defined as:

e atransfer of economic resources or obligations between related parties, or the provision of services
by one party to a related party, regardless of whether any consideration is exchanged.

Attachment Il

Summary of corrected audit misstatements

Corrected misstatements

Income effect Financial position
Description (Decrease) Assets Liabilities Equity
Increase (Decrease) (Decrease) | (Decrease)
Increase Increase Increase
To adjust for an EFT payment that was - $301,150 (301,150) -
initiated after year end but was included
as an outstanding cheque. Amount was
reclassified to accounts payable.
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Income effect

Financial position

Description (Decrease) Assets Liabilities Equity
Increase (Decrease) (Decrease) (Decrease)
Increase Increase Increase
Total corrected misstatements - $301,150 (301,150) -

Corrected misstatements in presentation and disclosure

2013 Financial Statements--S. Thompson, Acting Director of F...

Page 67 of 279




Governance and Priorities Committee - 24 Apr 2014

PSAB Current Developments

Liability for Contaminated Sites

e New Accounting Standard, Liability for Contaminated Sites PS3260 has been approved by the PSAB
and is effective for years commencing on or after April 1, 2014. Early adoption is encouraged.

e Governments will be required to recognize a liability for contaminated sites when the government is
responsible for, or accepts responsibility for, the contamination, and the contamination exceeds
existing environmental standards. The amount recorded as a liability must be reasonably estimable
and would include costs directly related to the remediation activities and post-remediation costs that
are an integral part of the remediation strategy. Costs related to asset purchases to be used in
remediation would be included in the liability to the extent that the assets have no alternative use.

Financial Instruments and Foreign Currency Translation

e New Accounting Standards, Financial Instruments PS3450 and Foreign Currency Translation PS2601
have been approved by the PSAB and are effective for years commencing on or after April 1, 2015
for governments. Early adoption is permitted.

e Equity instruments quoted in an active market and free-standing derivatives are to be carried at fair
value. All other financial instruments, including bonds can be carried at cost or fair value depending
on the government’s choice and this choice must be made on initial recognition of the financial
instrument and is irrevocable.

e Hedge accounting is not permitted.

e A new statement, the Statement of Re-measurement Gains and Losses, will be included in the
financial statements. Unrealized gains and losses incurred on fair value accounted financial
instruments will be presented in this statement. Realized gains and losses will continue to be
presented in the statement of operations.

Revenue

e PSAB is proposing a single framework to categorize revenues to enhance the consistency of revenue
recognition and its measurement. A Statement of Principles was issued in 2013 and comments are
currently under deliberation.

e An exposure draft is under development and expected for release in the 3" quarter of 2014.
Adoption of these principles would result in a need to assess current accounting policies.

e In the case of revenues arising from an exchange, a public sector entity must ensure the recognition
of revenue aligns with the satisfaction of related performance obligations.

e For unilateral revenues, recognition occurs when there is authority to record the revenue and an
event has happened that gives the public sector entity the right to the revenue.
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Related Party Transactions

The PSA Handbook currently has no specific accounting standards relating to Related Party
Transactions. PSAB issued an exposure draft for a new standard on related party transactions;
responses are currently under review and a revised draft is expected in spring 2014.

Related parties include entities that control or are controlled by a reporting entity, entities that are
under common control and entities that have shared control over or that are subject to shared control
of a reporting entity.

Individuals that are members of key management personnel and close members of their family are
related parties. Disclosure of key management personnel compensation arrangements, expense
allowances and other similar payments routinely paid in exchange for services rendered is not
required.

Determining which related party transactions to disclose is a matter of judgment based on
assessment of:

the terms and conditions underlying the transactions;
the financial significance of the transactions;

the relevance of the information; and

©O O O O

the need for the information to enable users’ understanding of the financial statements
and for making comparisons.

A related party transaction, with the exception of contributed goods and services, should normally be
recognized by both a provider organization and a recipient organization on a gross basis.

A reporting entity may either:
o disclose information about contributed goods and services; or

0 recognize a revenue and expense if those goods and services would otherwise have
been purchased.

Related party transactions, if recognized, should be recorded at the exchange amount. A public
sector entity’s policy, budget practices or accountability structures may dictate that the exchange
amount is the carrying amount, consideration paid or received or fair value.

Assets

PSAB issued a Statement of Principles that proposes additional guidance on the definition of assets,
disclosure requirements for assets and definitions of and standards on disclosure requirements for
contingent assets and contractual rights.

An exposure draft is under development and expected for release in the 3™ quarter of 2014.
Adoption of these principles would result in a need to assess current accounting policies.

Asset Retirement Obligations

A Statement of Principles is under development to address the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of legal obligations associated with retirement of long-lived tangible
capital assets currently in productive use. The Statement of Principles is expected for release in the
2" quarter of 2014.

Recognition and measurement of the liability will be a major issue as will be accounting for the
related expense.
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KPMG LLP

Chartered Accountants

St. Andrew's Square Il Telephone  (250) 480-3500
800-730 View Street Telefax (250) 480-3539
Victoria BC V8W 3Y7 Intemet www.kpmg.ca

Brenda Warner, Director of Finance
The Corporation of the City of Victoria
City Hall

#1 Centennial Square

Victoria, BC V8W 1P6

November 2, 2010

Dear Ms Warner

The purpose of this letter is to outline the terms of our audit engagements of The Corporation of
the City of Victoria (the “Entity”) commencing for the period ending December 31, 2010:

¢ audit engagements for the financial statements
¢ audit of the Home Owner Grant reporting

¢ audit of the Entity’s compliance with subsections 2 and 3 of section 124 of Part 8 of the
School Act.

This letter supersedes our previous letter to the Entity dated November 14, 2008. The terms of the
engagement outlined in this letter will continue in effect from period to period, unless amended or
terminated in writing. The attached Terms and Conditions form an integral part of the terms of

this engagement and are incorporated herein by reference (collectively the “Engagement Letter”).

FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The financial statements will be prepared and presented in accordance with Canadian public
sector accounting standards (hereinafter referred to as the “financial reporting framework"™).

The financial statements will include an adequate description of the financial reporting
framework.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITIES
Management acknowledges and understands that they are responsible for:

o the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the
financial reporting framework referred to above;

e ensuring that all transactions have been recorded and are reflected in the financial statements;

¢ such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Management also acknowledges and understands that they are responsible for the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control to prevent and detect fraud;

¢ providing us with access to all information of which management is aware that is relevant to
the preparation of the financial statements such as records, documentation and other matters;

KPMG LLP. 13 a Canacian bmuted batxity partnershp and a memoge hrm of the KPMG
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e providing us with additional information that we may request from management for the
purpose of the audit;

¢ providing us with unrestricted access to persons within the Entity from whom we determine it
necessary to obtain audit evidence;

e providing us with written representations required to be obtained under professional standards
and written representations that we determine are necessary. Management also acknowledges
and understands that professional standards require that we disclaim an audit opinion when
management does not provide certain written representations required.

An audit does not relieve management or those charged with governance of their responsibilities.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES REGARDING THE AUDIT
Our function as auditors of the Entity is:

e to express an opinion on whether the Entity’s annual financial statements, prepared by
management with the oversight of those charged with governance, are, in all material
respects, in accordance with the financial reporting framework referred to above; and

e to report on the annual financial statements.

We will conduct the audit of the Entity’s annual financial statements in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted auditing standards and relevant ethical requirements, including those
pertaining to independence (hereinafter referred to as applicable *“professional standards™). We
will plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Accordingly, we will, among other things:

e identify and assess risks of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, based on an
understanding of the Entity and its environment, including the Entity’s internal control. In
making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Entity’s
preparation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Entity’s internal control;

¢ obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about whether material misstatements exist,
through designing and implementing appropriate responses to the assessed risks;

¢ form an opinion on the Entity’s annual financial statements based on conclusions drawn from
the audit evidence obtained;

e communicate matters required by professional standards, to the extent that such matters come
to our attention, to the appropriate level of management, those charged with governance
and/or Council. Refer to Appendix C for a listing of such matters and the form and timing of
such communication.

2013 Financial Statements--S. Thompson, Acting Director of F... Page 71 of 279



Governance and Priorities Committee - 24 Apr 2014

Ms Brenda Warner, Director of Finance
The Corporation of the City of Victoria
November 2, 2010

Page 3

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITIES REGARDING THE AUDIT OF THE HOME OWNER GRANT:
TREASURER/AUDITOR CERTIFICATE

e We will also perform audit procedures with respect to the Home Owner Grant:
Treasurer/Auditor Certificate (the “Certificate”) in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted auditing standards with the objective of expressing an opinion whether the financial
information in the Certificate presents fairly, in all material respects, is in accordance with
Section 12 of the Home Owner Grant Act. However, we cannot provide assurance that an
opinion without reservation will be rendered. Circumstances may arise in which it is
necessary for us to modify our audit report or withdraw from the audit engagement. In such
circumstances, our findings or reasons for withdrawal will be communicated to the
appropriate level of management, those charged with governance and/or Council

o The report will indicate that it is intended solely for the information and use of Council and
management of the Entity and the Ministry of Community, Sport and Cultural Development
and that it is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
parties.

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITIES REGARDING THE COMPLIANCE WITH SUBSECTIONS 2 AND 3 OF
SECTION 124 OF PART 8 OF THE SCHOOL ACT

e We will also perform audit procedures with respect to the Entity’s compliance with
subsections 2 and 3 of section 124 of Part 8 of the School Act in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted auditing standards with the objective of expressing an opinion whether the
Entity is compliance with subsections 2 and 3 of section 124 of Part 8 of the School Act.
However, we cannot provide assurance that an opinion without reservation will be rendered.
Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to modify our audit report or
withdraw from the audit engagement. In such circumstances, our findings or reasons for
withdrawal will be communicated to the appropriate level of management, those charged with
governance and/or Council

e The report will indicate that it is intended solely for the information and use of the = Finance
and Audit committee and management of the Entity and the Ministry of Community, Sport
and Cultural Development and that it is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone
other than these specified parties.

AUDITORS’ DELIVERABLES

The expected form and content of our audit reports are provided in Appendix B. However, there
may be circumstances in which a report may differ from its expected form and content.

AUDITORS' AND MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITIES REGARDING CONTINUOUS DISCLOSURE
DOCUMENTS

When the Entity intends to file an annual report and we are requested to consent to the use of the
audit report on the Entity's financial statements, professional standards require that we read the
information contained in the Annual report and consider whether such information is materially
inconsistent with the related financial statements.
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Management is responsible for providing us with adequate notice of the preparation of the annual
report and providing us with a copy, prior to issuance, of the Annual report. Furthermore,
management has the responsibility for identifying subsequent events and providing appropriate
disclosure in, or adjustment of, the financial statements as a result of such events as required by
the financial reporting framework and for providing updated written representations to the date of
our consent.

INCOME TAX COMPLIANCE AND ADVISORY SERVICES —

Tax compliance and advisory services are outside the scope of this letter. These services will be
subject to the terms and conditions of a separate engagement letter.

FEES

Appendix A to this letter lists our fees for audit services to be performed under this Engagement
Letter. Fees for tax compliance and advisory services are to be agreed with you when such
services are requested.

* Xk ¥ *x *x Xk *x %k %

We are available to assist the Entity, upon request, with a wide range of services beyond those
outlined above. Additional services are subject to separate terms and arrangements.

We are proud to serve you and we appreciate your confidence in our work. We shall be pleased to
discuss this letter with you at any time. If the arrangements outlined are in accordance with your
requirements and if the above terms are acceptable to the Entity, please sign the duplicate of this
letter in the space provided and return it to us.

Yours very truly

;dm:— AkP

Chartered Accountants

Randy G Decksheimer

250.480.3515

Partner responsible for the engagement and its performance, and for the report that is issued on
behalf of KPMG LLP, and who, where required, has the appropriate authority from a
professional, legal or regulatory body

RGD/st
Enclosure

The terms of the engagement set out are as agreed:
THE CORPORATION OF THE C OF VICTORIA

Per: ot Date: me.c, 8 2A010

Brenda Warner, Director of Finance
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The Entity and KPMG agree to a fee based on actual hours incurred at mutually agreed-upon

rates. The estimated fee for the services described in this letter, in the initial 2010 reporting year,
is $49,500.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Mayor and Council

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of The Corporation of the
City of Victoria (*‘the Entity’"), which comprise the statement of financial position as at
December 31, 2010, and the consolidated statements of operations and accumulated surplus,
change in net financial position and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing
standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the Entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of The Corporation of the City of Victoria as at December 31, 2010, and the
results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian
public sector accounting standards.
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Appendix B—Expected Form of Reports (cont)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Ministry of Community, Sport and Cultural Development

We have audited the accompanying Home Owner Grant: Treasurer/Auditor Certificate (the
“Certificate”) for the Corporation of the City of Victoria (the “Entity”), for the year ended
December 31, 2010. The Certificate has been prepared by management based under the
provisions of Section 12 of the Home Owner Grant Act.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CERTIFICATE

Management is responsible for the preparation of the Certificate in accordance with the
provisions of Section 12 of the Home Owner Grant Act, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the Certificate that is free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Certificate based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the Certificate is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the Certificate. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Certificate, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the Entity's preparation of the Certificate in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the Certificate.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial information in the Certificate is prepared, in all material respects, in
accordance with the provisions of Section 12 of the Home Owner Grant Act.

RESTRICTION ON DISTRIBUTION

The Certificate is prepared to meet the requirements under the provisions of Section 12 of the
Home Owner Grant Act. As a result, the Certificate may not be suitable for another purpose.
Our report is intended solely for the Entity and the Ministry of Community, Sport and Cultural
Development and should not be distributed to parties other than the Entity or the Ministry of
Community, Sport and Cultural Development.
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Appendix B—Expected Form of Reports (cont)

AUDITORS' REPORT ON SUBSECTIONS 2 AND 3 OF SECTION 124 OF PART
8 OF THE SCHOOL ACT TO THE MINISTRY OF COMMUNITY, SPORT AND
CULTURAL DEVELOPMENT

At the request of the Corporation of the City of Victoria (the “Entity”), we have audited the
Entity’s compliance with subsections 2 and 3 of section 124 of Part 8 of the School Act for the
year ended December 31, 2010. Compliance with subsections 2 and 3 of section 124 of Part 8 of
the School Act is the responsibility of the Entity’s management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on this compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.
Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether
the Entity complied with subsections 2 and 3 of section 124 of Part 8 of the School Act. Such an
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting compliance, evaluating the overall
compliance with subsections 2 and 3 of section 124 of Part 8 of the School Act and, where
applicable, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management.

In our opinion, the Entity has complied, in all material respects, with subsections 2 and 3 of
section 124 of Part 8 of the School Act for the year ended December 31, 2010.
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Appendix C—Matters to Communicate

Matters required to be communicated under professional standards to the appropriate level of
management include:
Engagement partner

¢ identity and role of the engagement partner.

Fraud and non-compliance with laws and regulations
e any identified fraud or any information obtained that indicates that a fraud may exist.

e any identified non-compliance with laws or regulations or suspected non-compliance.

Control deficiencies

¢ any significant deficiencies in the Entity’s internal control that we intend to communicate to
those charged with governance unless it would be inappropriate to communicate directly to
management in the circumstances.

o other deficiencies in internal control that have not been communicated to management by
other parties and that, in our professional judgment, are of sufficient importance to merit
management’s attention.

Misstatements

e any accumulated misstatements, other than those that are clearly trivial. Furthermore, we
request that management correct all misstatements communicated.

Matters required to be communicated, on a timely basis, under professional standards to those
charged with governance include:

Engagement partner
o identity and role of the engagement partner.

Audit approach
e an overview of the planned scope and timing of the audit.
Fraud and non-compliance with laws and regulations

e any identified fraud or suspected fraud that may exist involving management, employees who
have significant roles in internal control, or others where the fraud results in a material
misstatement in the annual financial statements.

e any matters related to fraud that are, in our judgment, relevant to your responsibilities.
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Appendix C—Matters to Communicate (cont)

e any identified non-compliance with laws or regulations or suspected non-compliance, other
than when the identified or suspected non-compliance is clearly inconsequential.
Control deficiencies

e any significant deficiencies, in writing, in the Entity’s internal control.

Misstatements

e any accumulated uncorrected misstatements (amounts or disclosures) other than those that are
clearly trivial. Furthermore, we request all uncorrected misstatements be corrected.

Accounting practices

e our views about significant qualitative aspects of the accounting practices including
accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures.

Significant difficulties

o any significant difficulties that we encountered during the audit. For example, if we conclude
that management’s refusal to allow us to send a confirmation request is unreasonable or when
we are unable to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from alternative audit procedures.

Significant matters

¢ significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed, or subject to
correspondence with management (e.g., management’s consultation with other accountants,
major issues discussed with management prior to retention or any disagreements with
management, whether or not satisfactorily resolved, about matters that individually or in the
aggregate could be significant to the financial statements or report thereon).

e other significant matters arising from the audit , if any, that, in our professional judgment, are
significant to the oversight of the financial reporting process, including those significant
matters arising from the audit in connection with the Entity’s related parties.

e instances where our evaluation of the work of a component auditor gave rise to a concern
about the quality of that auditor’s work.

e any limitations on the group audit, for example, where our access to information may have
been restricted.
Management representations

e copies of written representations requested from management.

Going concern

e events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the Entity’s ability to
continue as a going concern.
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Appendix C—Matters to Communicate (cont)

Reporting
¢ any expected modifications to the audit report.
e any expected emphasis of matter or other paragraphs in the audit report.

¢ management refuses to remove a scope limitation in the audit.

Other information

e any revision necessary to, or material misstatement of fact included in, financial and
non-financial information which is included, either by law, regulation or custom, in a
document containing the audited financial statements and our audit report thereon (“other
information”) that we identified when reading such information, which management refuses
to correct.

e any significant matters resulting from the procedures performed in accordance with
professional standards on the other information.

® our responsibilities with respect to other information in documents containing audited
financial statements.

e any identified non-compliance with laws or regulations or suspected non-compliance where
we suspect that management or those charged with governance are involved (to be reported to
the mayor).

Note: Significant findings from the audit will be communicated in writing if, in our professional
Jjudgment, oral communication would not be adequate.
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Appendix D—Terms and Conditions for Assurance Engagements

The Terms and Conditions are an integral pant of the accompanying engagement letter from KPMG that identifies the engagement to which they relate (and collectively form the
“Engagement Letter™). The Engagement Letter supersedes all written or oral representations on this matter.

1. SEVERABILITY.

If any of the provisions of this Engagement Letter are determined 1o be invalid or
unenforceable, the remaining provisions shall remain in effect and be binding on the
parties to the fullest extent permitied by law.

2. GOVERNING LAW,

This Engagement Letter shall be subject to and governed by the laws of the province
where KPMG's principal office performing this engagement is located (without regard
to such province's rules on cenflicts of law) and all disputes arising hereunder or related
thereto shall be subject 1o the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of such province of
Canada.

3. LLPSTATUS.

KPMG LLP is a registered limited liability Pannership (“LLP™) established under the
laws of the Province of Ontario and, where applicable, has been registered
extra-provincially under provincial legislation. KPMG is a partnership, but its partners
have a degree of limited liability. A panner is not personally liable for any debts,
obligations or liabilities of the LLP that arisc from a negligent act or omission by
another partner or of any other person under that other partner’s direct supervision or
control. The legislation relating to limited liability partnerships docs not. however,
reduce or limit the liability of the firm. The firm's insurance exceeds the mandatory
professional indemnity insurance requirements established by the varicus
Institutes/Ordre of Chartered Accountants. Subject to the other provisions hereof, all
partrers of the LLP remain personally liable for their own actions and/or actions of
those they directly supervise or control.

4. DOCUMENTS AND CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION.

Management's cooperation in providing us with documents and related information and
agreed-upon assistance on a timely basis is an imporiant factor in being able to issue our
report. KPMG shall be entitled to share all confidential information with all member
firms of KPMG Intemational performing services hereunder. All work papers. files and
other intemal materials created or produced by KPMG during the engagement and all
copyright and intcllectual property rights in cur work papers are the property of KPMG.
S. INFORMATION PROCESSING OUTSIDE OF CANADA.

Personal and/or confidential information (e.g. entries into KPMG’s time and billing
system and into KPMG's conflicts database) collected by KPMG during the course of
this engagement may be processed and stored outside of Canada by KPMG, KPMG
Intemnational member firms performing services hereunder or third party processors.
Such personal and/or confidential information may be subject to disclosure in
accordance with the laws applicable in the jurisdiction in which the information is
processed or stored which laws may not provide the same level of protection for such
information as will Canadian laws.

6. PERSONAL INFORMATION CONSENTS AND NOTICES.

KPMG may be required to collect, use and disclose personal information about
individuals during the course of this engagement. The Entity represents and warrants
that: (i) it will cbtain from individuals all consents required by law 1o permit KPMG to
collect, use and disclose all personal information reasonably required in the course of
the engagement, and (ii) it has provided notice of KPMG's potential processing of
information outside of Canada (as described in paragraph 5 above) to all individuals
whose personal information is disclosed to KPMG.

7. OFFERS OF EMPLOYMENT.

In order to allow issues of independence to be addressed. management agrees that prior
1o extending an offer of employment to any KPMG paniner, employee or contractor, the
matter is communicated to the engagement partner or associate partner.

8. OFFERING DOCUMENTS.

If the Entity wishes to include or incorporate by reference the financial statements and
our report thercon in an offering document, we will consider consenting to the use of
our report and the terms thereof at that time. Prior to issuing any consent, comfort or
advice letter, if any, we will be required to perform procedures as required by
professional standards. Management agrees to provide us with adequate notice of the
preparation of such documents.

9. FEE ARRANGEMENTS.

KPMG's estimated fee is based on the quality of the Entity’s accounting records, the
agreed-upon level of preparation and assistance from the Entity's personnel, and
adherence to the agreed-upon timetable. KPMG's estimated fee also assumes that the
Entity's financial statcments are in accordance with the applicable financial reporting
framework and that there are no significant new or changed accounting policies or
issues, or financial reporting, internal control over financial reporting or other reporting
issues. KPMG will inform the Entity on a timely basis if these factors are not in place.
Additional time may be incurred for such matters as significant issues, significant
unusual and/or complex transactions, informing management about new professional
standards, and any related accounting advice. Where these matters arise and require
research, consultation and work beyond that included in the estimated fee, the Entity
and KPMG agree to revise the estimated fec. No significant additional work will
proceed without management’s concurrence, and, if applicable, without the concurrence
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of those charged with govemance. Upon completion of these services KPMG will
review with the Entity any fees and expenses incurred in excess of KPMG’s estimate,
following which KPMG will render the final billing. Routine adminisirative expenses
such as long distance telephone calls, photocopies, fax charges, printing of statements
and reports, postage and delivery and sccretarial and report department assistance will
be charged on the basis of a percentage of KPMG's professional costs. Other
disbursements for items such as travel, accommodation and meals will be charged based
on KPMG's actual disbursements
KPMG's invoices are due and payable upon receipt. Amounts overdue are subject to
interest. In order to avoid the possible implication that unpaid fees might be viewed as
creating a threat to KPMG's independence, it is important that KPMG's bills be paid
promptly when rendered. If a situation arises in which it may appear that KPMG's
independence is threatened because of significant unpaid bills, KPMG may be
prohibited from signing the report and, if applicable, any consent.

Fees for any other services will be billed separately from the services described in this

engagement letter and may be subject to written terms and conditions supplemental 10

those in this letier.

10. LEGAL PROCESSES.

The Entity on its own behalf acknowledges and agrees to cause its subsidiaries and its

affiliates to acknowledge that KPMG may, from time to time:

* be required, pursuant to subpoena or other legal process, or may agree 10 a request
by the Entity. 1o provide information and copies of documents in KPMG's files,
including KPMG's working papers and other work-product relating to the Entity,
its subsidiarics and/or its affiliates (“Information and Documentation™) in judicial
or administrative proceedings to which KPMG is not a party; and

e receive requests or orders from judicial, administrative, professional, securities or
other regulatory or governmental authorities (both in Canada and abroad, including
without limitation the Canadian Public Accountability Board) (“Requesting
Authority”) to provide them with Information and Documentation.

In such sitations. the Entity on its behalf consents and agrees to causc its subsidianies

and affiliates to consent to KPMG providing Information and Documentation without

further reference to, or authority from, the Entity or its subsidiaries and affiliates. If a

request or order is direcily related to an inspection or investigation of the Entity or its

subsidiaries and affiliates. KPMG will advise the Entity or its subsidiaries and affiliates
of the request or order, except where prohibited by law from doing so.

KPMG will not provide 10 the Requesting Authority Information and Documentation

over which the Entity or its subsidiaries and affiliates have expressly asserted privilege,

except a) with the Entity’s consent, b) where required by law, or ¢) where requested by

a provincial Institute/Ordre of Chartered Accountants pursuant to its statutory authority.

The Entity or its subsidiaries and affiliates will mark any document over which the

Entity or its subsidiaries and affiliates assert privilege as “privileged”.

KPMG may also be required to provide Information and Docuwentation 0 a

Requesting Authority relating to the fees that KPMG charges or collects from the Entity

or its subsidiaries and affiliates for the provision of audit services, other accounting

services and non-audit services, and the Entity on its behalf consents and agrees to
cause its subsidiaries and affiliates to consent to the disclosure of that Informaticn and

Documentation to that Requesting Authority.

The Entity or its subsidiaries and affiliates shall reimburse KPMG at standand billing

rates for its professional time and expenses, including reasonable legal fees, incurred in

dealing with the matters described above.

11. KPMG INTERNATIONAL MEMBER FIRMS.

The Entity agrees that any claims that may arise out of this engagement will be brought

solely against KPMG, the contracting party and not against any other KPMG

International Cooperative (*KPMG Interational™) member finms participating in this

engagement. )

12, CONNECTING TO THE ENTITY'S IT NETWORK.

KPMG personnel are authorized to connect their computers to the Entity's IT Network,

subject 10 any restrictions communicated to KPMG from time to time. Connection to

the Entity’s IT Network or the Internet via the Network. while at the Entity's premises,
will be for the express purpose of conducting normal business activities, primarily
relating to facilitating the completion of work referred to in this letter.

13. DELIVERABLES OR COMMUNICATIONS.

KPMG may issuc other deliverables or communications as pant of the services

described in this Engagement Leuter. Such deliverables or communications may not to

be included in, summarized in. quoted from or otherwise used or referred to, in whole or
in part, in any documents or public oral statement.

KPMG expressly does not consent to the use of any communication, report, statement

or opinion prepared by us on the interim financial statements and such communication,

report. statement or opinion may not be included in, summarized in, quoted from or
otherwise used in any document or public oral statement.
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2013 Financial Statements

« Section 167 of the Community Charter requires annual
financial statements to be presented to Council for its
acceptance

« The statements have been prepared in compliance with the
Community Charter and in accordance with Canadian Public
Sector accounting standards for local governments as
recommended by the Public Sector.
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« A system of internal controls are maintained to provide
reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded,
transactions are authorized and recorded in compliance with
legislation.
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2013 Financial Statements

2013 Accumulated Surplus - $436,208,269

*Total ‘economic resources’ available to the City, as shown on
Statement of Financial Position

*The accumulation of the City’s annual increases in equity in
capital assets and reserve balances since its inception - how
much the City’s assets exceeds liabilities
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«Capital assets are the most significant portion of the
accumulated surplus, followed by reserves, and operating
surplus available for future funding

1dV 2 - 99111WW0D S3II0ld PUe 32URUIBA0D

J0 gg abed

N
v CITY OF
VICTORIA



2013 Financial Statements

2013 Accumulated Surplus - $436,208,269

2013 General Fund
Surplus,
$3.47 million

Reserve Balances,
$127 million
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Equity in Tangible
Capital Assets,
$308 million
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2013 Financial Statements

2013 Annual Surplus - $35,614,534

*‘economic resources’ gained by the City during the year, as
shown on Statement of Operations

*Primarily increased equity in Tangible Capital Assets and
growth in Reserve balances
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*$3.474 million is the General fund surplus available for future
spending

«Council decides annually on the use of the current year General
fund surplus — incorporated into the following year’s budget
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2013 Financial Statements

2013 Annual Surplus - $35,614,539

2013 General Fund

Surplus,
$3.47 million
Increase of equity
in Capital Assets
(vehicles,
buildings, Increase of
infrastructure, reserves and MFA
etc..),. Cash Deposit,
$18 million $13.9 million
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2013 Financial Statements

Reserves
*The City’s reserves grew by $13.9 million in 2013

*Transfers from reserves, to fund capital projects &
programs, were $8.6 million less than budget

— funding is drawn down from reserves as capital projects are
completed

— fewer projects than planned were completed by Dec 31

— some projects experienced schedule adjustments to begin at a
later date
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2013 Financial Statements

Reserve Balances

Financial Stability Reserves
Equipment & Infrastructure Replacement
Fund

Gas Tax

Economic development
Debt Reduction

Self Insurance

\Working Capital Fund
Tax Sale Lands Fund
Parks and Greenways Acquisition Fund
Local Amenities
Affordable Housing
Climate Action

\Water Utility

Sewer Utility

Tree conservation

Art in public places
Downtown Core Area Public Realm
Improvements

Heritage Building Seismic Upgrades

TOTAL RESERVES

Transfer Transfer
Dec 31, 2012 To From Interest Dec 31, 2013
3,227,324 100,000 (769,150) 40,341 2,598,515
53,037,267 11,483,173 (12,518,372) 662,965 52,665,033
5,137,696 2,146,764 (911,683) 64,221 6,436,998
725,378 - - 9,067 734,445
13,335,722 7,752,593 - 166,697 21,255,012
3,687,282 - - 46,091 3,733,373
3,789,711 - - 47,371 3,837,082
10,326,723 111,481 (903,646) 129,084 9,663,642
2,241,446 - - 28,018 2,269,464
100,784 - - 1,260 102,044
2,051,341 250,000 (430,000) 25,643 1,896,984
253,415 124,367 - 3,168 380,950
1,844,385 3,033,533 - 23,055 4,900,973
13,434,671 2,801,083 - 167,933 16,403,687
306,403 29,640 - 3,830 339,873
234,205 135,000 (70,569) 2,928 301,564
- 57,373 - - 57,373
- 19,124 - - 19,124
113,733,753 28,044,132 (15,603,420) 1,421,672 127,596,137
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Development Cost Charges

Water and Environment
Streets

Transportation

\Water

Drainage

Sewage

Parkland Acquisition
Parkland Development

Transfer Transfer

Dec 31,2012 To From Interest Dec 31, 2013
890,418 - 11,130 901,547.71
19,508 - 244 19,751.56
2,598,109 329,043 32,476 2,959,628.15
248,914 37,057 3,111 289,081.57
152,005 20,898 1,900 174,802.28
851,617 165,222 10,645 1,027,484.01
1,429,198 215,269 17,865 1,662,332.48
483,939 90,688 6,049 580,675.15

6,673,707 858,176 83,420 7,615,303

‘ CITY OF
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2013 Financial Statements

Capital Assets

*The City’s inventory of capital assets increased by $25.4 million

*Most significant increases resulted from:
« $8.9 million of roads infrastructure — construction of Johnson Street Bridge
« $8 million of water/sewer/storm drain infrastructure built
« $5.5 million of vehicle and equipment purchases

« $1.8 million of building infrastructure built — City Hall customer
service/access improvement
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*Net book value of capital assets is $357,742,684
(historical cost less depreciation)

1dV 2 - 99111WW0D S3II0ld PUe 32URUIBA0D

J0 Gp abed

AN
‘ CITY OF
VICTORIA



2013 Financial Statements
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0 CAPITAL ASSETS (Historical Costs) 2013 2012
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% Land $136,693,575 $135,784,270

S Buildings 90,770,544 85,145,510

§_ Furniture, Equip, Tech & Vehicles 58,088,624 50,884,754

% Roads, Bridges and Highways 86,295,730 83,685,450 g)

3 Water Infrastructure 53,077,355 51,259,470 «:<2

Q >

o Sewer Infrastructure 16,440,681 16,108,253 =

o O

T Drainage Infrastructure 12,436,445 12,078,440 g

: Assets under Construction 34,846,843 28,301,636 =
iv

Total Capital Assets $488,649,797 $463,247,783 S
(:D".
wn
Accumulated Amortization -130,907,113 -122,063,816 §

3,

- 5

g TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS (Net Book Value) $357,742,684 $341,183,967 D
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2013 Financial Statements

Debt

*The City’s outstanding debt decreased by $3.1 million

*NOo new debt issued in 2013
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Debt authorized but not issued: $39 million
— for Johnson Street Bridge construction
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2013 Financial Statements

DEBT ISSUES (in millions) EXPIRY DATE 2013
Issue 79, 80, 81 — Multipurpose Facility (Arena) 2033/34 24.42
Issue 85 — City Hall Seismic Upgrades 2019 1.32

Issue 95 — Upgrade Fire Halls

"4 J0 1019311q Bunoy ‘uosdwoy] "S--sjuswalels [el

2020 0.68
Issue 102 — City Hall Upgrades & Burnside Gorge Community Centre 2022 3.01
Issue 105 — Crystal Gardens 2024 2.69
Issue 103/105/110 — Parkades Upgrades 2023 / 2023 / 2025 707
Issue 115 — Johnson Street Bridge 2023 9.5
TOTAL DEBT $48.7 million

J0 g6 abed
p 1dy 172 - 991110 Sa111i0lld puUe 93URUISA0D

‘ CITY OF
VICTORIA



2013 Financial Statements

Investments

« Investment portfolio returned $2.3 million

« Actual investment portfolio rate of return was 1.74%
« 59% greater than the return of the MFA money market fund
* 40% greater than the City’s avg. bank account interest rate
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« Portfolio governed by City’s Investment Policy
» Invest funds in a prudent manner
« Highest returns within limits prescribed by Community Charter s.183
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S |INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO 2013 2012

':> Investment Returns $2,313,072 $2,218,046

= |Actual Rate of Return 1.74% 1.78%

% MFA Money Market Return 1.09% 1.06%
Average Bank Interest Rate 1.25% 1.25%
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2013 Financial Statements

 Revenues & expenses

— Financial Statements presented in PSAB
format

— Budget comparison not effective in this format

— Meaningful comparison of budget to actual
provided in the following:
« Appendix A — Operating Revenues & Expenses
« Appendix B — Capital Expenditures
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2013 Financial Statements

Recommendation:

Council accept the 2013 Financial Statements.
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Governance and Priorities Committee - 24 Apr 2014

v CITY OF
VICTORIA

Governance and Priorities Committee Rep'ort

Date: April 15, 2014 From: Susanne Thompson, Acting Director of Finance
Subject: 2014 First Quarter Budget Status Report

Executive Summary

Under the Community Charter, Council approves a five-year financial plan bylaw that authorizes the
expenditure of funds and collection of revenues for the City’s various programs. If unanticipated
events occur during the year that impact the approved five-year financial plan, staff recommend
amendments to the financial plan bylaw to authorize the changes.

The 2014-2018 Financial Plan Bylaw has not yet been adopted by Council. However, the draft bylaw
was given first reading on April 10, 2014.

The financial plan is reviewed regularly during the year and its status is reported quarterly to
Council. Each report highlights any variances and recommends adjustments, if any, to the five-year
financial plan bylaw.

This report outlines the status of the 2014 budget as of March 31, 2014. No significant variances

have been identified. Therefore, no amendments to the draft 2014-2018 Financial Plan Bylaw are
recommended.

Recommendation

That Council receive this report for information.

Respectfully submitted

o —

Susanne Thompson
A/Director of Finance

Report accepted and recommended by the City Manager: A\] ‘V/V/
Date: Apcd o 701

2014 First Quarter Budget Status Report--S. Thompson, Acting... Page 103 of 279



Governance and Priorities Committee - 24 Apr 2014

Purpose

To provide Council with an update on the 2014 operating and capital budgets for the three months
ending March 31, 2014,

Background

Under section 165 of the Comf‘nunity Charter, Council approves a five-year financial plan bylaw
annually.

The 2014-2018 Financial Plan Bylaw has not yet been adopted by Council. However, the draft
bylaw was given first reading on April 10, 2014.

The financial plan is reviewed regularly during the year and its status is reported quarterly to
Council. Each report highlights any variances and recommends adjustments, if any, to the five-
year financial plan bylaw.

Issues & Analysis

Operating Budget

Appendix A provides a summary of the operating budget revenues and expenditures for the three
months ending March 31, 2014.

Revenues vary depending on the timing of receipt of the revenues. For example, payments in lieu
of taxes are generally collected in the latter half of the year and property taxes are levied in May
and due the beginning of July. At this point, revenues are expected to be on budget.

Expenditures vary depending on the seasonal nature of the work programs. At this point,
expenditures are expected to be within budget.

Capital Budget

Appendix B provides a summary of capital programs and projects.

Although only 11.33% has been spent to date overall, when factoring in purchase order
commitments in place, capital programs are at 27.06% spent and capital equipment at 22.45%
spent and are expected to be fully, or close to fully, expended by the end of the year. Capital
project start and finish dates vary. Capital projects including commitments are currently at
79.04%.

Staff are working diligently to complete the capital work plan according to schedule, However,
should a project be unable to be completed by the end of the year, requests to move the budget
forward into next year can be made as part of the regular year-end budget process. At this point,
there are no significant budget or schedule changes for projects included in the 2014 capital
budget. However, two additional projects (noted below) have been identified that may require
additional funding. Once the extent of the work and funding required have been determined, staff
will report back with options for Council’s consideration.

GPC Report April 15, 2014
2014 First Quarter Budget Status Report Page 2 of 3
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Governance and Priorities Committee - 24 Apr 2014

Facilities — Mould at Police Headquarters

Mould was found in some rooms on the main floor of Police Headquarters and appears to be the
result of a water leak. Staff will be engaging a building envelope consultant to determine how and
where the water is getting into the building. Cost of the repair will be determined once the scope
of work to repair the building envelope is better known.

Public Works — Hydro Poles

BC Hydro changes numerous poles every year which requires the City to replace street lights and
arms that are mounted on the hydro poles. In addition to their normal annual replacement
program, BC Hydro notified the City towards the end of March of their intent to replace an
additional 350 to 400 poles. These additional street lights and arms have not been budgeted in
2014. The preliminary cost estimate is $290,000. Staff are looking at options to fund these
additional poles including LED options and grant opportunities.

Recommendation

That Council receive this report for information.

GPC Report April 15, 2014
2014 First Quarter Budget Status Report Page 3 of 3
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CITY OF

VICTORIA

Governance and Priorities Committee Report

Date: April 24, 2014 From: Julie MacDougall, Assistant Director, Parks

Subject: Beacon Hill Park Transportation Management Plan — Revised Budget

Executive Summary

The purpose of this report is to seek approval of the revised project budget for implementing the
approved traffic flow measures and multi-use bike lanes identified in the Beacon Hill Park
Transportation Plan.

The total estimated budget to install a combination of permanent and temporary traffic flow changes
and multi-use trail features is $89,650, including contingency. This work has been identified in the
2014 budget submission and no additional funds will be required to implement this project.
Recommendation:

That Council approves the revised project budget for the implementation of the Beacon Hill Park

Transportation Management Plan.

Respectfully submitted

P
/ P
—Julie MacDougall Kate Friars
Assistant Director, Parks Director, Parks, Recreation and Culture
Report accepted and recommended by the City Manager: [{‘AV/
Date: k?c"-\ \ ;lal‘l
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Purpose

The purpose of this report is to seek approval of the revised project budget for implementing the
approved traffic flow measures and multi-use bike lanes identified in the Beacon Hill Park
Transportation Plan.

Background

In 2001, the Beacon Hill Park Management Plan was approved and one of the key
recommendations was the development of a traffic management plan for the park. The overall
objective is to minimize vehicle traffic in the park and promote a safe and pedestrian-friendly
environment.

In September 2011, Council received a report based on best practices and community
consultation that recommended 22 traffic and trail changes in the park. Council requested a pilot
program be implemented and reported back.

Commencing in August 2012, a Council directed one year pilot program was implemented during
which public input was gathered. On December 12", 2013 Council resolved to undertake a
number of changes including permanent changes along Circle Drive and Chestnut Row and
temporary changes along Bridge Way to allow for one-way vehicular traffic with temporary
infrastructure to allow for a multi-use trail.

Council’s Specific motion was:

That Council, subject to the approval of the revised budget:

1. Adopt the piloted changes for vehicular movements and multi-use trails in Beacon
Hill Park as permanent with the exception of a portion of Bridge Way between the
washroom buildings and cricket pitch.

2. Approve the replacement of the temporary infrastructure from the pilot with more
aesthetically pleasing and permanent traffic calming features.

3. Approve formalizing a scenic drive through the park using road markings.

4, That staff plan to implement on a permanent basis only those changes common to
options 1 and 3.

Improvements within Beacon Hill Park are budgeted on an annual basis, and the implementation
of the Beacon Hill Transportation Plan was identified by staff as one of the key projects for 2014.

Future Beacon Hill Park transportation plan improvements will include the design and construction
of the multi-use trail connecting from Circle Drive diagonally to the Dallas Road crosswalk. This
will be finalized in conjunction with the parking area near the totem pole in order to design a route
that will minimize trail impacts on the meadow. This project will be included in the 2015 work plan
for Beacon Hill Park.

Committee Report April 24, 2014
Beacon Hill Park Transportation Management Plan — Revised Budget
Page 2 of 3
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Issues & Analysis

The following table outlines treatments and estimated costs for implementing the approved

recommendations:
Location Type Treatment Cost
Heywood Avenue Permanent | 2 bulb outs (curb and grass) $10,000
Chestnut Row — connection at | Permanent | Bulb out (curb and grass) $10,000
Circle Drive
Dallas Road/ Circle Drive Permanent | Median improvements, stencilling and | $8,500
intersection paint
Circle Drive — Chestnut Row to | Permanent | Median installation, permanent $35,000
Totem Pole concrete centreline curbing
Scenic route marking Permanent | Stencilling and paint $1,000
Bridge Way/Arbutus Temporary | Curb adjustments, painted crosswalk | $7,000
intersection
Bridge Way - Chestnut Row to | Temporary | Bollard adjustments, install temporary | $10,000
Heywood Avenue delineators
Sub-total $81,500
Contingency $8,150
Total $89,650

The majority of the budget is for concrete curbing to act as a safety divider between vehicle traffic
and multi-use trail users along Circle Drive. Additional works include installing median
improvements, upgrading accessibility ramps, line painting and sign upgrades. The concept
drawings for the proposed changes are attached to this report. Detailed design drawings will
reflect the temporary or permanent nature of the treatment.

The temporary improvements will be completed by June 30, 2014. The permanent improvements
will begin on September 3 and will be completed by October 3, 2014 to minimize impact during
peak park use.

Recommendation
That Council approves the revised project budget for the implementation of the Beacon Hill Park
Transportation Management Plan.

Committee Report April 24, 2014
Beacon Hill Park Transportation Management Plan — Revised Budget
Page 30f 3
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CITY OF
VICTORIA

Bridge Way at Arbutus Way

Concept Sketch
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8. DECISION REQUESTS

8.1 Beacon Hill Park — Changes to Vehicular Movements and Multi-Use
Trail Improvements

Committee received a report dated December 5, 2013 from Parks, Recreation &
Culture that outlined Changes to Vehicular Movements and Multi-Use Trail
Improvements to Beacon Hill Park. In 2001 City Council endorsed the Beacon Hill
Park Management Plan, which referenced many transportation issues, both
vehicular and non-vehicular. Parks planning staff initiated a transportation
planning process in 2008 and reported to Council with a draft Transportation Plan
suggesting permanent road closures in the heart of the park and pathway
upgrades in 2011.

Mayor Fortin returned to the meeting at 12:41 p.m. and assumed the Chair.

On March 8, 2012, Council asked staff to detail a work-plan for changes to
vehicular traffic. A one year pilot period started in August 2012 to August 2013.
The pilot is still in place subject to approval of staff recommendations. The
opportunity for public input regarding the pilot closure concluded September 1,
2013, with over 1,500 surveys received. A thorough analysis was undertaken and
revised recommendations to the current pilot closures are recommended.

Action: Councillor Helps moved that Committee recommends that Council adopt
the pilot changes for vehicular movements and multi-use trails in Beacon
Hill Park as permanent.

Committee discussed the motion as follows:

e The overall objective to minimize traffic in the Park and the OCP vision of a
walkable City.

e This is a cost effective compromise supported by the community associations.

e Staff's recommendations are supportable; implementing them with minimal
cost.

¢ Showing leadership for an urban park that families can enjoy without vehicle
traffic.

e Concerns that this option doesn’t respond to a segment of the public with
accessibility issues.

e Noting that cut-through traffic has been addressed through the pilot program.

e Supporting the outcome of the survey; responding to civic engagement.
The property near the Totem Pole and if parking could still be an option;
o ltis still possible in that option to realign the parking.

Action: Councillor Helps moved that Committee am